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Murugappa Group

Founded in 1900, the INR 381 Billion (38,105 Crores) Murugappa Group is one of India's leading business
conglomerates. The Group has 28 businesses including nine listed Companies traded in NSE & BSE. Headquartered in
Chennai, the major Companies of the Group include Carborundum Universal Ltd., Cholamandalam Financial Holdings
Ltd., Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Ltd., Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company Ltd.,
Coromandel International Ltd., Coromandel Engineering Company Ltd., E.I.D. Parry (India) Ltd., Parry Agro Industries
Ltd., Shanthi Gears Ltd., Tube Investments of India Ltd., and Wendt (India) Ltd.

Market leaders in served segments including Abrasives, Auto Components, Transmission systems, Cycles, Sugar, Farm
Inputs, Fertilisers, Plantations, Bio-products and Nutraceuticals, the Group has forged strong alliances with leading
international companies such as Groupe Chimique Tunisien, Foskor, Mitsui Sumitomo, Morgan Advanced Materials,
Sociedad Quimica y Minera de Chile (SQM), Yanmar & Co. and Compagnie Des Phosphat De Gafsa (CPG). The Group
has a wide geographical presence all over India and spanning 6 continents.

Renowned brands like BSA, Hercules, Montra, Mach City, Ballmaster, Ajax, Parry's, Chola, Gromor, Shanthi Gears and
Paramfos are from the Murugappa stable. The Group fosters an environment of professionalism and has a workforce of
over 51,000 employees.

For more details, visit www.murugappa.com

The Spirit of the Murugappa Group

humility to
tld around us

These five llghtS guide us as we navigate through professional and personal decisions.
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KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS-CONSOLIDATED
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Dear Sharehalders,

Financial Year 2019-20 (FY 20) has been a challenging year
for the domestic economy. India started witnessing economic
slow-down in the latter part of FY 19, with three of the four growth
engines-private consumption, private investment and exports
slowing down significantly, accentuated by liquidity constraints
in the financial services sector. This continued into FY 20 and
for the first time in several years, India’s GDP grew below 6% in
all the four quarters of the year and adding to pressures on an
already slowing economy, came COVID-19 in March 2020.

Amidst these difficult environment, your Company recorded a
consolidated income of 13,135 Crore and achieved a profit
of 1,165 Crore. Earlier your Company had applied to the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for registration as a Core Investment
Company (CIC). It gives me immense pleasure to inform you
that Cholamandalam Financial Holdings (CFHL) has now
been licensed as a NBFC-CIC-ND-SI (Non-Banking Financial
Company — Core Investment Company — Non-Deposit taking
— Systematically Important). During the year under review,
your Company infused an additional capital of ¥300 Crore to
augment capital adequacy requirement of its NBFC segment,
Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company (CIFCL).

| shall now give you a brief insight into the performance of
CFHL’s major investee companies during the FY 20.

NBFCs and its allied sectors witnessed a tight liquidity situation
which, to some extent has been alleviated through measures
taken by the RBI by way of announcement of LTRO, moratorium
for payment of dues etc. Despite these external factors, CIFCL
has displayed commendable tenacity in the face of adversity.
CIFCL’s profit after tax grew by 17% in FY 20 before considering
one time provision for COVID-19 related contingencies. To
further strengthen its capital adequacy, the Company raised
31,200 Crore capital through a Qualified Institutional Placement
for Y900 Crore and a preferential allotment for ¥300 Crore. The
Company also raised funds for the first time through an issue
of ‘Masala bonds’ of 3400 Crore. CIFCL’s liquidity position as
at end March 2020 was stable, sufficient enough to meet its
near term commitments. On the business front, disbursements
in Vehicle Finance division was impacted predominantly due to

significant decline in the automotive sales across all product
categories. However, the business to a large extent was
able to offset year on year de-growth in traditional segments
through higher disbursements in Passenger Vehicles and
Two-Wheeler segments. While the affordable Home Loans
business continued to increase its disbursements over the
previous year, the Home Equity business witnessed a muted
growth in line with the industry trends.

General insurance industry reported gross written premium
(GWP) of 21,604 billion in FY 20, a growth of 9.5% over the
previous year. Cholamandalam MS General Insurance (Chola
MS) retains its market share of 3.1% after adjustment for crop
insurance premium, which the Company did not participate and
achieved a GWP of 34,824 Crore (under IND-AS) during the
year in line with the industry growth trajectory. The Company
continued to expand its network with bancassurance partners
and OEMS and secured new linkages with leading PSUs during
the FY 20. Despite a general slow down in the last quarter of the
year, Chola MS continued to make an underwriting surplus in
most lines of its businesses except Motor Third Party, Travel and
weather insurance. In the context of investment portfolio, Chola
MS adopted prudent strategies and deployed funds largely in
Government securities and pared down exposures to corporate
bonds.

Cholamandalam MS Risk Services, offering risk management
solutions, strengthened its Order book during the year by
bagging few long term contracts in domestic as well as in
overseas. A host of new services such as contractor incubation
centre, studies on soil & ground water contamination and
remediation plant were introduced during the year. The business
also partnered with digital developers to introduce EHS digital
products and explore introducing Al integrated studies into the
market.

Off late, digital transformation has become part of a successful
business strategy rather than just technology. Adapting
and adopting to digital is the need of the hour in the present
environment. Staying in sync with the current trend, the financial
services companies, CIFCL and Chola MS, have implemented
various IT and digital initiatives to offer financial solutions in
a more accessible way to customers and enhance internal
business processes.

Mrs. Shubhalakshmi Panse, Independent Director resigned
from the Board in November 2019. The Board is thankful to
Mrs. Panse for her contribution as a Board member, a
Chairperson of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee. On behalf of the Board,
| welcome Mrs. Vasudha Sundararaman inducted on the Board
as an independent director in February 2020.

While theimmediate term may look a little stressed, | am confident
that economic activities will pick up from the second half of FY
21 as the nation-wide lockdown is gradually eased. However,
a lot will depend on containing the spread of COVID-19 at the
earliest. In alignment with the Group’s values, CFHL through its
investee companies shall continue to deliver quality services
with high responsibility to its respected customers with utmost
passion and integrity.

| thank all employees of the Company and its subsidiary /
associate / JV companies for their sincere efforts and contribution
during a rather challenging year. | also take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to all the stakeholders, customers,
business partners and vendors for their trust, unconditional faith
and support reposed on us.

Best Wishes
M M Murugappan
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Is the Executive Chairman of Murugappa Corporate Advisory Board;
Holds a Bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering from the AC College of Technology,
University of Madras, India and a Master of Science Degree in Chemical Engineering
from the University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, Michigan, USA;

¢ Has over 41 years of experience in diverse areas including strategy & business
development, technology and human resources;

¢ Is the Non-Executive Chairman of Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company
Ltd., Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company Ltd., Coromandel International

Mr. M M Murugappan Ltd., Tube Investments of India Ltd. and Carborundum Universal Ltd.
(64 years) ¢ Is a Non-Executive Director on the boards of Mahindra & Mahindra Ltd. and Cyient Ltd.
DIN: 00170478 ¢ Served on the Board of Governors of IIT Madras, for six years till November 2011 and
Chairman & has enabled many industry academic partnerships. Now serves on the board of the
Non-Executive Director [IT-Madras Research Park and is a mentor to many companies incubated there;

¢ Is a trustee of the Group’s AMM Foundation, actively involved in the development of various citizenship initiatives,
particularly in education, health care, performing arts and sports;

¢ Has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company since 11" November, 2017. Prior to that he had served the Board of
the Company as a Non-Executive Director from March, 2002 till July, 2017.

¢ Graduate in Commerce, a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, Institute of Company Secretaries of India and CPA (Australia). Is a certified
Mediator empaneled with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of Indig;

¢ Has long and distinguished executive career in the corporate sector until retirement
in 2016 as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Forbes & Company
Limited. Has held leadership positions in various Indian and multinational organizations,
both in India and overseas - Hindustan Lever Ltd., RPG Group, Pepsi, Electrolux, Telstra
and Heinz;

¢ Mentors budding entrepreneurs and advises companies on strategy, performance
improvement and governance initiatives;

¢ Is a director on the Board’s of DCB Bank Ltd., Mahindra Intertrade Ltd., Bata Ltd., Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat
Huhtamaki PPL Ltd. and Wacker Metroark Chemicals Private Ltd. (a subsidiary of
Wacker Chemie AG). Is the member of Managing Committee of ASSOCHAM and
President of The Council of EU Chambers of Commerce in India;
Was a past President of the Bombay Chamber of Commerce and Industry;

Joined the Company’s Board on 1t August, 2018.

(63 years)
DIN: 00492930
Independent Director

¢  Graduated from the University of Mumbai and is a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India;

¢ Has experience in the areas of statutory and internal audit, due diligence, SOX
compliance and other professional services;

¢ Has worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers, A. F. Ferguson and Deloitte Haskins & Sells
where he was a partner till 2015;

¢ During his long career, has serviced national and multinational clients from diverse
sectors such as manufacturing, trading, software, time-share, real estate, financial

Mr. B Ramaratnam services, pharma, engineering, construction, services etc.
(65 years) ¢ Is aBoard member of Redington (India) Ltd.
DIN: 07525213 ¢ Joined the Company'’s Board on 18" March, 2019.

Independent Director
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¢ Is aB.Sc (Zoology) graduate from Stella Maris College, Chennai, M.Sc (Zoology) from
Madras University and a Certified Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers;

¢ Joined State Bank of India as a probationary officer in 1981 in Delhi and retired in
November 2017 as Chief General Manager;

¢ Has lengthy experience in grass-root, retail aspects of banking for close to 20 years as
Branch Head, Head of Personal Banking Division, NRI Division and retail processing;

¢ Was actively involved in implementation of various projects of the bank aimed at
impacting the employees and individual customers of the Bank;

Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman ¢ Has served as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of a subsidiary
company of SBI for more than 4 years;

(62 years)
DIN: 06609400 ¢ Was appointed as an additional director on the Company’s Board on 12" February,
Independent Director 2020.

¢  Graduate in Commerce from the Madurai University, a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, a graduate member of the Institute of Cost and Works
Accountants of India and a certified Six Sigma ‘Green Belt’, trained ‘Process Champion’
and ‘Black Belt’;

¢ Is the Chief Financial Officer of Murugappa Group;

¢ Prior to joining the Group, has worked in Timken India Ltd., Trance Inc., METITO,
LG Electronics, IDBI Bank Ltd. and ABB Group;

¢ Has over 30 years of experience in finance, manufacturing, service & distribution,

banking and contracting industries; . .
9 9 Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan

¢ Isadirector on the Boards of various companies including Cholamandalam MS General 54
Insurance Company Ltd., Cholamandalam Home Finance Ltd., Cholamandalam MS (54 years)

Risk Services Ltd. and Net Access India Ltd. DIN- 01‘3144?3
Non-Executive Director

¢ Joined the Company’s Board on 30" August, 2018.

¢ s an Engineering graduate, a Post Graduate Diploma in Management from the Indian
Institute of Management, Ahmedabad, a qualified Cost Accountant and a Company
Secretary;

¢ Has over three decades of experience in the fields of finance and marketing and was the
Whole-time / Managing Director of Coromandel International Ltd. from 2004 to 2010;

¢ Having served Ashok Leyland early in his career joined Murugappa Group and is the
Lead Director of fertilizer and sugar business of the Group;

¢ Is the Chairman of E.I.D. - Parry (India) Ltd. and Vice Chairman of Coromandel
International Ltd.

Mr. V Ravichandran

¢ Is aBoard member of Parry Sugars Refinery India Private Ltd.
(63 years)
DIN: 00110086
Non-Executive Director

¢ Joined the Company’s Board on 18" March, 2019.
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS FY 20 - SUBSIDIARY / ASSOCIATE

Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited

CKey Performance Indicators)

Business
Assets under
Management (net)
360549 Crore

Total
Disbursements
329091 Crore

Total Income

38653 Crore

Profit Before Loan Losses Capital
Tax & Provisions Adequacy Ratio
%1586 Crore 1.50% 20.7%

Key Highlights

« Largest equity raise of Y1200 Crore through QIP and Preferential Allotment
First INR denominated Tier Il Masala Bonds of 3400 Crore

Implemented 150 Kaizen projects to improve productivity in processing
Highest ever quantum of Securitisation and Direct assignment of assets
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Implemented Automation & Digital drives
More than 14 Lakh customers and 26000 employees
1091 branches across 29 States / Union Territories
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Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company Limited "

[ Gross Direct Premium

‘l 34824 Crore

[ Investment Portfolio

[ (
.\ /' %9027 Crore
(Y L

Profit Before Tax

o

Key 3216 Crore
Performance
Indicators Networth

¥1605 Crore

-./‘\_.[ Combined Ratio

—0— 0=

107.5%

.r Solvency Ratio
L 1.58%

Key Highlights

Fire Business from PSU Banks crossed 3100 Crore mark

Services one of the biggest PSU Bank Network of about 37000 branches
Enabled Live Video Streaming for customers
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Sold more than 45 Lakh policies
More than 141 Lakh customers
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P Eles‘:llg‘nce & ) Motor K Travel /n\‘s Total Home M) Personal
Plans Insurance Insurance Protect d 4 Accident

*Figures under Ind-AS
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Board’s Report & Management Discussion and Analysis

Dear Shareholders,

The Directors take pleasure in presenting the 71t Annual Report together with the audited financial statements of the

Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited (‘CFHL’)
is the holding company for the financial services and
risk management businesses of the Murugappa Group.
CFHL is registered as a Non-Deposit taking Systemically
Important Core Investment Company (‘CIC’) pursuant to
a certificate of registration dated January 6, 2020 issued
by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) under Section 45-1A of
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s paid up equity share capital as on March
31, 2020 was %18.77 Crore. During the year 23,796
equity shares were allotted upon exercise of vested
stock options by the eligible option grantees under the
Company’s Employees Stock Option Schemes 2007 and
2016.

MACRO ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT

Indian economy had shown clear signs of slowing down
even before the onset of the pandemic. The country’s GDP
grew by 4.2% in the FY 19-20 with a moderate growth of
4.8% in the first half year. A weak consumer demand,
slow private investment and tight credit conditions
in the financial sectors were some of the key factors
for the decelerated growth during the year. Reforms
undertaken by the government to revamp the financial
sector, address the NBFC crisis, reduce the stress in
the real estate sector and speed up the resolution under
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC) had a marginal
impact during the second half year. However, GDP
growth tapered significantly to 3.1% in the fourth quarter
due to the outbreak of coronavirus pandemic and the
resultant nationwide lock down.

Globally, the weaker-than-expected performance
reflected a marked slowdown amongst some of the
developing economies. The slowdown partly reflects
global factors such as softened demands, political
instability and impacts due to extreme weather events.
Few major economies witnessed a dampened growth
during the year due to contraction in global trade and
manufacturing activities. International trade disputes
resulted in uncertainty and strained global trade which

further led to a decline in most commodity prices.
Financial market improved towards the end of the fiscal
year with the easing of trade tensions. However, the
outbreak of COVID-19 in the beginning of the year 2020
has sent shock waves across global equity markets. The
pandemic paralyzed activities in most of the countries.
Financial sector volatility has exploded to levels last seen
during the global financial crisis. With the continuing
unprecedented situation, a probability exists that major
parts of the global economy could slip into recession.

In India, adverse impact is manifested in most of the
businesses due to supply disruptions, fall in consumption
demand and stress on the banking and financial sectors.
India’s GDP growth for FY 20-21 is estimated to reduce
significantly as compared to pre-covid projection of
around 5%. Several important relief measures and
stimulus packages announced by the government is
expected to contain the economic impact of COVID-19.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

CFHL earns revenue predominantly by way of dividend
income from investments held in subsidiary and other
group companies. An overview of the financial service
sector in which the company operates along with a
business update of these companies during FY 19-20 is
summarised in the following paragraphs.

NBFC Industry & Business Update

India’s financial sector is a highly diversified one
comprising commercial banks, insurance companies,
non-banking financial companies, co-operatives,
pension funds, mutual funds and other smaller financial
entities. The sector is predominantly driven by banking
and non-banking financial companies (‘NBFCs’). Over
the past few years NBFCs have emerged as important
financial intermediaries, particularly for the small-scale
and retail sectors in underserved areas and unbanked
sectors. The sector turned out to be growth engines in
an environment where significant importance is assigned
to financial inclusion and have aided the economy in
employment generation and wealth creation by making
credit available to the rural segment. However, in recent
times the sector is becoming a weaker segment in Indian
financial system.
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During FY 19-20 the sector continues to witness liquidity
challenges which led to certain NBFCs experience stress
in their loan books as evidenced by the growing level of
non-performing assets (‘NPAs’). The onset of COVID-19
during the fourth quarter, further weakened NBFCs stance
in the economy. Asset quality deterioration in NBFCs is
expected to be more severe than banks because of its
exposure in riskier segments. To support the economy,
the RBI eased monetary policy to maintain adequate
liquidity in the system, facilitate smooth bank credit
flow and moderate financial strain. Revival measures
initiated by the regulator include provision of moratorium
on EMI repayments, cut on repo rates from 6.25% to
4.40%, relaxation in classification of loan as NPAs and
provision of long-term repo operations (LTRO). Prudential
requirements for banks have also been eased to free up
liquidity for lending.

Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company
Limited (CIFCL), a NBFC incorporated in 1978, is one
of the leading, comprehensive financial service provider
offering vehicle finance, home loans, home equity loans
etc., to a wide range of customers. The NBFC business
observed an overall slow-down during the FY 19-20.

The Vehicle Finance (VF) business comprising of
diversified portfolio viz., commercial vehicles, passenger
vehicles and used vehicles, continues to be the major
segment, contributing 73% of its aggregate assets under
management (AUM) as at March 31, 2020. The division
has more than 80% of branches operating in the rural
areas, towns and semi urban areas. CIFCL is one of the
largest player in the used vehicle financing business
with a disbursement mix of almost 30% in this segment.
Severe de-growth in the auto industry across product
segments led to a decline of 6% in VF disbursements to
323387 Crore (previous year: 324983 Crore). With higher
disbursements from used, 3-wheeler and 2-wheeler
products, the Company was able to offset drop in other
segments. Assets under management grew by 9% to
344206 Crore (net) (previous year: 340606 Crore). The
business has a robust collection mechanism and strong
credit risk assessment framework in place which will help
navigate the present day conditions.

The Home Equity (HE) business continues to focus on
a systematic approach to build a healthy portfolio mix,
with more than 80% of the portfolio as Self-Occupied
Residential Properties (SORP) and an average loan ticket
size of less than 350 Lakh. AUM for HE business grew
by 11% to 312960 Crore (previous year: 311626 Crore)
and disbursements registered a decline of 5% to 33662
Crore (previous year: ¥3837 Crore). End to end digital

0 Management Reports @ Financial Statement 0‘

integration in loan processing has been the focus for
business in order to improve overall customer experience
and cut down business turnaround time. Online payment
modes for collections have been enhanced to offer
multiple payment options to customers. During the year,
the business expanded its branch network pan India,
with focus on Tier Il, lll and IV cities.

Home Loans (HL) business offers loans for self-
construction, purchase of new and resale flats/
independent houses, balance transfer from other
financiers, top-up loans for existing customers. As at
March 31, 2020, the business division had 24,000 live
accounts and disbursed 31505 Crore during the year
(previous year: %1157 Crore), registering a growth of
30%. Middle-Income-Group customers continue to be
the target group for the HL business. 95% of the portfolio
comprises business owners with semi-formal income
and significant business vintage buying their first home.
Lending for self-construction, remains to be a strong
focus with significant proportion of the portfolio and fresh
disbursements sourced from this segment.

The Company has fast-tracked implementation of a
host of IT and digital initiatives which shall help to serve
customers better and faster in a post COVID-19 world.

Business outlook of CIFCL for FY 20-21 remains
uncertain with the COVID-19 situation evolving each day.
Vehicle finance segment will continue to be the mainstay
for CIFCL. While the home equity portfolio has also been
a significant contributor to the company’s growth, the
home loan business has a great potential to be built into
a solid portfolio considering the expertise of the company
in handling typical customer profiles.

General Insurance Industry & Business Update

In India, insurance industry is gaining momentum in
securing life, health and property of individuals by acting
as a risk management tool. Government’s policy of
insuring the uninsured has gradually pushed insurance
penetration in the country and proliferation of insurance
schemes. The general insurance industry grew by 9.5%
in FY 19-20 and achieved a Gross Written Premium
(GWP) of 31642 billion with about 55% market share of
private players vis-a-vis PSU players. During the year,
the general insurance industry underwent a turbulent
phase with several far-reaching developments many
of which were positive and impactful with a clutch of
factors causing severe transitory problems and impact
on profitability. Positive developments during FY 19-20
include, amendment proposed to Motor Vehicles Act,
mandatory minimum pricing for property line of business,
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continued strong growth of specialized health players
etc. Decline in sale of new vehicles, pricing discounts
offered in Motor Own Damage (OD) insurance resulting
in sharp rise in Motor OD claims, heavy losses from crop
insurance segment and mandatory investment norms on
stressed housing & infrastructure sectors were some of
the limitation factors for industry’s growth.

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company Limited
(CMSGICL), the insurance business division of CFHL, is
registered with Insurance Regulatory and Development
Authority of India (IRDA) to carry on general insurance
business. CMSGICL offers a wide range of insurance
including motor, travel, health, accident, home and other
types of insurance for corporate customers. In a highly
competitive business environment, CMSGICL ranks
8™ position among private insurers with a market share of
3.1% (excluding crop insurance).

CMSGICL recorded a gross written premium of 34824
Crore (previous year: 34552 Crore) for the year ended
March 31, 2020. Growth in business operations
continues to be driven by strong performance in retail
channels with Motor & Health insurance segments being
significant contributors of the premiums with a good
mix across metros & non metros. In Motor insurance
business, besides stepping up its presence significantly
in the two-wheeler segment, the Company expanded its
participation in the OEM programs of motor vehicles. The
premium pricing in Motor OD insurance witnessed severe
pressure throughout the year with discounts across
vehicle categories rising to new highs. The decision of
the regulator to defer the price increase in motor third
party premium could further aggravate the situation. The
Health, Accident and Travel lines of business (other than
employer-employee group health) grew by 9.5% during
the year. Muted disbursements in motor NBFCs / HFCs,
impacted the benefit of product bundling in health and
accident products leading to lower growth. Loss ratios
across this line of business continues to be good with
the Company continuing to adopt prudent underwriting
practices while focusing on new segments of growth.
Revenue from property lines of business scaled up (both
banca and commercial channels) contributing about 8%
of the total GWP. Higher proportion of business from
preferred category risks, geographical spread of risks,
granular risks have ensured improvement in the claims
ratios of these lines.

CMSGICL strengthened its bancassurance business
through renewal of its tie-up with a PSU bank for a
further period of 3 years. Expansion of its network
with channel partners including PSU Banks, NBFCs,

Co-operative banks and addition of OEMs and digital
partners is expected to provide a strong momentum
in the coming years. Pricing discounts in Motor OD
business due to a slump in automobile industry, continued
weakness in credit markets, leading to downgrades and
defaults in the financial sector, natural catastrophes and
prolonged monsoons impacted business growth during
the year. Business during the year experienced favourable
reinsurance treaties resulting in the willingness of global
reinsurers to enhance their capacity and support. As at
March 31, 2020 the investment portfolio was 39027 Crore
(previous year: 37697 Crore). The Company continues to
emphasise on safety and liquidity of investments and
together with monetised gains, grew the investment
income to X770 Crore (previous year: 3566 Crore) with a
gross yield of 9.05% (previous year: 7.92%). The average
investment portfolio duration was at 4.25 years.

During the year, the Company focussed on new digital
enablers across all operating functions and processes
through a number of initiatives. These initiatives have
enabled the Company to serve its customers faster
and better bringing in efficiencies and more importantly
strengthening the ability to scale volumes.

Growth in general insurance industry is driven by
economic activities and GDP growth. Motor insurance
and property line of business are likely to be impacted
with its dependence on automotive and industrial
sectors. Business has drawn counter measures to reduce
the COVID-19 impact which include enhanced focus
on renewals, higher volumes in health line of business,
launch of COVID-19 specific products and harnessing
the state-owned banks bancassurance relationships.
The Company will monitor the environment carefully to
recalibrate its growth plans for the ensuing years.

Risk Management Solutions — Business Update

Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited (CMSRSL), is
engaged in providing risk management and engineering
solutions in the field of safety, health and environment,
in association with CMSGICL. CMSRSL strengthened
its order book during the year by bagging few long
term contracts in domestic as well as in overseas. The
Company continued to partner with organizations in
implementation of their CSR projects in the areas of
Health, Safety & Environment (HSE) programs, and
Road Safety programs. The business also partnered
with digital developers to introduce HSE digital products
and explore introduction of Al integrated studies into
the market. The joint venture partner, Mitsui Sumitomo
Insurance Company Ltd., Japan, continues to support
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the Company by introducing Japanese companies
entering the Indian market for risk management services.
As on March 31, 2020, CMSRSL had an order book of
%68 Crore for execution in the coming financial year.

STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS  in Crore)
Particulars 2019-20 | 2018-19
Total Income 90.90 73.52
Total Expenses 3.97 2.61
Profit Before Tax 86.93 70.91
Tax Expense 3.60 4.38
Profit for the year 83.33 66.53
Other Comprehensive Income (0.61) (0.68)
Total Comprehensive Income 82.72 65.85

APPROPRIATIONS

During the year the Company has transferred 316.67
Crore to statutory reserve (previous year: ¥13.31 Crore)
as required under RBI regulations.

FINANCIAL REVIEW - SUBSIDIARY / ASSOCIATE /
JV COMPANIES

CFHL earned an income of %90.90 Crore (previous
year: ¥73.52 Crore) and profit before tax was %86.93
Crore (previous year: ¥70.91 Crore) for the year ended
March 31, 2020. An additional capital of 3300 Crore was
infused in the preferential allotment of shares of CIFCL
besides market purchase of CIFCL’s shares aggregating
to 324.26 Crore. As at March 31, 2020, aggregate
investments stood at ¥1278.35 Crore (previous year:
%954.78 Crore). During the year, the Company obtained a
term loan of Y200 Crore to meet its funding requirements.
Financial review of CFHL's subsidiary / associate and
JV companies during the year is furnished below.

Cholamandalam Investment & Finance Company
Limited (CIFCL)

CFHL holds 45.50% in the paid-up equity share capital
of CIFCL as on March 31, 2020. Securities of CIFCL are
listed and traded on the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited (NSE) and the BSE Limited (BSE). CIFCL
is treated as a subsidiary under Ind-AS. Rationale in this
regard is provided under Note 23 of standalone financial
statements.

During the year, the existing equity shares of CIFCL of
%10/- each fully paid up were subdivided into five equity
shares of face value of ¥2/- each fully paid up. The
Company raised 31200 Crore by way of equity infusion

through qualified institutional placement (900 Crore)
and preferential allotment (X300 Crore) during the year
to strengthen its capital adequacy requirement. CIFCL
further raised funds through an issue of ‘Masala bonds’
of 3400 Crore to augment its Tier Il capital requirements.

Assets under Management grew by 12% to 360549
Crore (net) as at March 31, 2020 (previous year: 354279
Crore). Loan disbursements aggregated to 329091 Crore
(previous year: 30451 Crore) registering a decline of 4%
during the year. Profit after tax was 31052 Crore after a
one-time provision of 504 Crore to cover contingencies
due to COVID-19 and macro-economic factors. On a
comparable basis, profit after tax for the year ended
March 31, 2020 was %1387 Crore before the one-time
provision as against ¥1186 Crore the previous year,
registering a growth of 17%. Pursuant to RBI guidelines
the Company offered moratorium to its customers for
EMI repayments. CIFCL’s liquidity position was strongly
placed as at March 31, 2020 to meet its near term
commitments. The Company did not avail moratorium on
its borrowing obligations. As at end of the year, capital
adequacy improved to 20.7% as against the statutory
requirement of 15%.

CIFCL paid interim dividend in two tranches aggregating
to %1.70 per equity share of face value of 32/- each. The
first interim dividend at the rate of 50% (31/-per equity
share) was approved in December 2019 and the second
interim dividend at the rate of 35% (%0.70 per share) was
approved in February 2020. The Board of CIFCL has
not recommended any final dividend for the year ended
March 31, 2020.

CIFCL's subsidiary companies are Cholamandalam
Securities Limited (CSEC) and Cholamandalam Home
Finance Limited (CHFL). CSEC is engaged in stock
broking and investment advisory services. The Broking
business grew by 9% while wealth business dropped
by 32% due to cap on upfront income and insurance
distribution business scaled up significantly during
FY 19-20. CSEC achieved a gross income of 323.58
Crore for the year ended March 31, 2020 and Profit
Before Tax of ¥3.26 Crore as against 32.68 Crore in the
previous year.

CHFL recorded a gross income of ¥38.61 Crore for the
year ended March 31, 2020 and made a loss before tax
of 20.77 Crore as against a loss of ¥11.0 Crore in the
previous year. The Company had filed an application with
the regulator seeking registration as a Housing Finance
Company and the registration is awaited. Currently, the
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Company continues its focus on growing insurance
corporate agency business.

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company
Limited (CMSGICL)

The Company holds 60% in the paid-up equity share
capital of CMSGICL - a joint venture with Mitsui
Sumitomo Insurance Company Ltd., Japan and is a
material subsidiary of CFHL.

IRDAI has deferred the implementation of Ind-AS for
insurance companies. Therefore, financials of CMSGICL
have been restated as per Ind-AS for consolidation
purposes and the figures reported for CMSGICL in the
annual report are under Ind-AS.

CMSGICL achieved a gross written premium of 34824
Crore during the FY 19-20 (previous year: 34552 Crore),
and the profit before tax was 3216 Crore (previous year:
%3280 Crore). While Claims ratios were under control
despite adverse environment of cyclones, higher
discounts in motor own damage etc, business sourcing
costs were higher impacting the underwriting results to
remain flat at a negative of 3218 Crore. Aided by over
35 billion of long term premium, investment income levels
rose to 770 Crore from 3566 Crore despite interest rates
dropping during the year. 170 Crore was the gain on
sale of debt investments for the year which largely helped
in meeting the provisioning / write off of stressed debt
assets.

With a view to conserve its resources, the Board of
CMSGICL has not recommended dividend for FY 19-20.

Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited (CMSRSL)

The Company holds 49.5% in the paid-up equity share
capital of CMSRSL, a joint venture with Mitsui Sumitomo
Insurance Company Ltd., Japan and has a technical
collaboration with Inter Risk, a group company of Mitsui
Sumitomo Insurance Group.

CMSRSL achieved a revenue of 346.28 Crore (previous
year: ¥40.82 Crore) and profit before tax of ¥5.62 Crore
(previous year: 34.88 Crore) for the year ended March 31,
2020. CMSRSL recommended a dividend of 31.25 per
share on its equity share of face value of 310/- each for
the FY 19-20.

Cholamandalam Health Insurance Limited (Chola
Health)

Chola Health was incorporated in July 2017 to offer
health insurance services and the Company has invested
99.9% in its paid up capital. Chola Health is yet to
commence its business operations.

DIVIDEND

The Company paid an interim dividend on the equity
shares at the rate of 65% i.e., ¥0.65 per equity share
of face value of ¥1/- each as approved by the Board of
Directors on February 26, 2020 for the year ended March
31, 2020. The Board has recommended to confirm the
interim dividend as the final dividend for FY 19-20.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS
(% in Crore)

Total Income 13135.73  10946.81
Total Expenses 11330.11 8812.02
Share of Profit from Associate /Joint 107 111
Venture (Net of Taxes)

Profit Before Tax 1806.89  2135.90
Tax Expense (641.84)  (721.07)
Profit for the year 1165.05 1414.83
Minority Interest (614.20)  (718.13)

Net Profit for the year attributable

550.85 696.70
to owners of the company

BUSINESS REVIEW - SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND
JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

CFHL's subsidiary companies are Cholamandalam MS
General Insurance Company Limited and Cholamandalam
Health Insurance Limited. Under Ind-As, Cholamandalam
Investment and Finance Company Limited is treated as
a subsidiary company and Cholamandalam MS Risk
Services Limited is a joint venture company of CFHL.
There has been no change in the nature of business of
these companies during the year. Business performance
of these companies are detailed in earlier paragraphs of
this report.

A report on the performance and financial position of
each of the aforesaid companies as per section 129(3)
of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, in the prescribed form AOC-1 is annexed to this
Report as Annexure A. The consolidated financial
statements of the Company, prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the relevant
Accounting Standards, forms part of the annual report.

The annual report containing standalone and
consolidated financial statements will be posted on the
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Company’s website, www.cholafhl.com. The annual
accounts of the subsidiary companies will also posted
on the Company’s website and be made available for
inspection by shareholders until the date of the Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) through electronic mode.

COVID-19 - BUSINESS UPDATE / OUTLOOK

Spread of the COVID-19 pandemic impacted the regular
operations of the Company and its subsidiary / associate
/ JV companies. In response to the nation-wide lock
down announced by the Government, the Companies
activated business continuity plan addressing financial
planning, business strategy realignment, employee
productivity re-focus, IT enablement and renewed
customer engagement. To ensure safety of employees
and in adherence to the Government norms various
measures including the facility to work from home
have been implemented. Since the pandemic and the
lockdown imposed affected the tail end of the financial
year, there is no impact on the standalone financial
performance during FY 19-20. A note in this regard is
included in the Standalone and Consolidated Audited
Financial Statements for the year under review vide
Note 1.4 and Note 4.1 respectively. Given the inherent
uncertainty regarding the severity and duration of the
pandemic, the Company will continue to monitor for any
material changes to future economic conditions.

DIRECTORS

At the 70" AGM held on August 1, 2019 the appointment
of Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat and Mr. B Ramaratnam as
Independent Directors of the Company for a term of
five years commencing August 1, 2018 and March 18,
2019 respectively, was approved. Further, Mr. Sridharan
Rangarajan and Mr. V Ravichandran were appointed as
directors liable to retire by rotation at the 70" AGM.

Ms. Shubhalakshmi Panse (DIN: 02599310), Independent
Director, resigned from the Board on November 20,
2019. The Board places on record its appreciation for the
contribution rendered by Ms. Panse during her tenure
as an Independent Director and as a member of Board
Committees.

Based on the recommendation of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee of the Board, Ms. Vasudha
Sundararaman (DIN: 06609400) has been appointed as
an additional director in the capacity of an Independent
Director with effect from February 12, 2020 and holds
office till the date of the ensuing 71t AGM. The Company
has received a notice from a shareholder proposing
the appointment of Ms. Vasudha as a director of the
Company. The Board recommends her appointment as
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a director of the Company and the resolution proposing
her appointment forms part of the Notice for the
715t AGM of the Company.

As per the provisions of section 152 of the Act,
Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan retires by rotation at the
ensuing AGM and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment. The Board recommends the
re-appointment of Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan as a director
liable to retire by rotation and the resolution in this regard
forms part of the notice for the 715t AGM of the Company.

Information as required to be disclosed under regulation
36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing
Regulations”), for appointment / reappointment of
directors is provided in the Notice for AGM.

DECLARATION FROM INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors ("IDs"), Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat,
Mr. B Ramaratnam and Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman
have submitted declaration stating that they meet the
criteria of independence as required under the provisions
of section 149 of the Act and regulation 16 of the Listing
Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, all the IDs
possess integrity, expertise and relevant experience in
their respective fields including the proficiency required
to effectively discharge their roles and responsibilities
in directing and guiding the affairs of the Company. All
the IDs are registered in the independent directors’ data
bank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules referred therein. The IDs are in the process of
completion of the online proficiency self-assessment test
as per the timeline notified by the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs ("MCA").

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. N Ganesh, Manager & Chief
Financial Officer and Ms. E Krithika, Company Secretary
are the key managerial personnel of the Company and
there were no changes during the year.

Mr. Ganesh was appointed as the Manager of the
Company with effect from August 9, 2017 for a period
of three years. His tenure as Manager expires on August
8, 2020. Subject to the approval of shareholders, the
Board at its meeting held on June 15, 2020 re-appointed
Mr. N Ganesh as the Manager for a further period of
three years with effect from June 15, 2020. Appropriate
resolution seeking shareholders’ approval is provided in
the Notice for the 715t AGM of the Company.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, were appointed as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company at the 66" AGM held on August 10, 2015,
for a period of five years and will complete their present
term on conclusion of the ensuing 71t AGM of the
Company. The Board pursuant to the recommendation of
the Audit Committee, recommends the re-appointment
of M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, as the Auditors of the Company for a
second term of five years from the conclusion of the
71t AGM until the conclusion of the 76" AGM.

Appropriate resolution seeking shareholders’ approval
for the re-appointment of M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates
LLP as the Auditors and authorisation to the Board to
fix the remuneration payable to them, is provided in the
Notice for the 715t AGM of the Company.

FINANCE
Deposits

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits under
Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 and as such no
amount of principal and interest were outstanding as on
March 31, 2020.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

The provisions of section 186 of the Act pertaining to
investment and lending activities is not applicable to
CFHL since the Company is an NBFC whose principal
business is acquisition of securities. Information regarding
investments made during the year is given in the financial
statements. During the year the Company has not given
any loans or guarantees under the provisions of section
186 of the Act.

Internal Financial Control Systems with reference to
the Financial Statements

The Company has in place adequate internal financial
controls to ensure reliability of financial and operational
information and regulatory and statutory compliances.
The Company’s business processes are equipped with
monitoring and reporting processes to ensure financial
discipline and accountability. The internal financial
control systems are monitored both by internal and
statutory auditors of the Company. The statutory auditors
of the company have also certified on the existence and
operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
as on March 31, 2020.

Financial Ratios

In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, the
Company is required to disclose details of significant
key financial ratios along with the detailed explanations
therefor. The Company being an investment company
and not having any trade receivables, debtors turnover
ratio, inventory turnover ratio, interest coverage ratio,
current ratio, operating margin ratio and net profit margin
ratio are not applicable. The leverage ratio computed in
accordance with RBI regulations is 0.03 as against the
regulatory maximum of 2.5. Capital adequacy ratio of the
Company as on March 31, 2020 was 478.51% as against
the minimum RBI requirement of 30%. Return on net
worth of the Company was 7.45% as at March 31, 2020
as against 6.25% as at March 31, 2019. Change in the
rate was on account of higher receipt of dividend income
during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Managing risk is fundamental to any business, in general
and in particular, to financial services industry. The
Company has an established risk management framework
which provides an integrated approach for identifying,
monitoring and mitigating risks associated with its
business and that of its subsidiaries / associates. Risks
arising out of NBFC, insurance and risk management
businesses of the investee companies are the dominant
risks of the Company. The investee companies have
their own risk management framework in line with its
strategic business operations as appropriate to the
industry in which they operate. Various risk exposures of
CFHL include financial risks, governance risks, market
risks, reputation risks and compliance risks. The Risk
Management Committee (RMC) assists the Board to
oversee various risks including review and analysis of
risk exposures related to the Company and its subsidiary
/ associate companies. RMC is supported by the Asset
Liability Committee (ALCO) constituted pursuant to
the RBI guidelines. The ALCO monitors asset liability
mismatches besides management of liquidity risks.
A Risk Management Policy has been framed by the Board
of Directors. The Company has also put in place a risk
control matrix. The control measures basis the matrices,
are tested by the internal auditor and reported to the
Audit Committee. The Board reviews the risk framework
on an annual basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

Internal control systems of an organisation is looked at
as the key to its effective functioning. The Company has
in place internal control framework to ensure compliance
with internal policies, regulatory matters and to safeguard
reliability of financial reporting and its disclosures. An
audit of systems and processes is conducted by the
internal auditor of the Company and the key findings are
reported to the Audit Committee every quarter.

The Audit Committee evaluates adequacy and
effectiveness of the internal controls, recommends
improvements and reviews the corrective action taken to
address gaps, if any.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company firmly believes in committing itself to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance.

A report on corporate governance of the Company
together with a certificate from the Auditors in accordance
with the Listing Regulations is annexed to this Report as
Annexure B. The Report further contains other details
which are required to be provided in the Board’s Report.

BOARD MEETINGS

Seven meetings of the Board were held during the year.
Details of the Board meetings are disclosed in the Report
on Corporate Governance.

COMPOSITION OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has constituted an Audit Committee in terms
of the applicable provisions of the Act and the Listing
Regulations. Details of terms of reference, composition
and meetings of the committee are disclosed in the
Report on Corporate Governance.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of section 134 of the Act and
regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, the Board has
carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance,
individual directors and its committees for FY 19-20.
The manner in which evaluation has been carried out is
provided in the Report on Corporate Governance.

POLICY ON BOARD NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION

The Board has framed a policy for selection and
appointment of directors, senior management and their
remuneration. Details of which are furnished in the Report
on Corporate Governance.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company being a part of the Murugappa Group, is
known for its tradition of philanthropy and community
service. The Company’s philosophy is to reach out to
the community through service-oriented philanthropic
institutions in the fields of education and healthcare.

With the enactment of CSR provisions in the Companies
Act, 2013, the Company has framed a CSR policy and
the policy is available on the Company’s website at,
http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/467.

Pursuant to the provisions of section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013, atleast 2% of the average net profits of
the Company shall be spent towards CSR activities.
Accordingly, the Company has spent an amount of
11 Lakh on CSR projects / programmes approved by
the CSR Committee during the year ended March 31,
2020 as against the statutory requirement of 36 Lakh.
Detailed information on the CSR activities undertaken
during the year is annexed to this Report as Annexure C.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions that were entered into with related parties
during the financial year were in the ordinary course of
business and on an arm’s length basis. There were no
materially significant related party transactions during the
year which may have a potential conflict with the interest
of the Company at large. Necessary disclosures as
required under the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS)
have been made in the notes to the financial statements.
The Company has framed a policy on related party
transactions. None of the Directors had any pecuniary
relationships or transactions vis-a-vis the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND PARTICULARS OF
EMPLOYEES

As on March 31, 2020, CFHL had two employees. The
investee companies of CFHL continue to emphasise on
resourcing and talent planning strategies based on their
functional and general management requirements in
preparing the organisation for the future. The information
required to be disclosed under the provisions of section
197 of the Act read with rule 5 of the Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 is annexed to this Report as Annexure D.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION (ESOP) SCHEMES

The Company’s ESOP Schemes viz., Employee Stock
Option Plan 2007 (ESOP 2007) and Employee Stock
Option Plan 2016 (ESOP 2016) have been approved by
the shareholders. During the year there have been no
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fresh grants under both the schemes. Details in respect
of ESOP 2007 and ESOP 2016 as required under the
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 are displayed on the Company’s website at
http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/554. Both the
schemes are in compliance with the SEBI (Employee
Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and SEBI (Share Based
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 respectively.

Vide the scheme of arrangement (demerger), employees
of the Company were transferred to the resulting
company, Tube Investments of India Ltd. The stock
options granted by the Company prior to the effective
date of demerger, i.e. August 1, 2017, continue to be
held by the option grantees who are employees of the
resulting company. During the year, upon exercise of
stock options by the eligible option grantees, 7026 and
16770 equity shares were allotted under ESOP 2007 and
ESOP 2016 schemes, respectively.

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

The Company has no activity relating to consumption
of energy or technology absorption etc. The Company
does not have any foreign exchange earnings. There
was a foreign exchange outgo, by way of repatriation
of dividend, amounting to 30.007 Crore during the year
(previous year 30.008 Crore).

WHISTLEBLOWER / VIGIL MECHANISM

In compliance with the provisions of section 177(9)
of the Act, read with rules made thereunder and the
Listing Regulations, the Company has established
a whistleblower / vigil mechanism which inter alia
facilitates its employees to report genuine concerns. The
mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against
victimisation of persons using the mechanism and
makes provision for direct access to the Chairman of the
Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases.
The policy is available on the Company’s website at,
http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/34.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT
WORKPLACE

Pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act,
2013, the Company has a policy for prevention of
sexual harassment at workplace. An Internal Complaints

Committee (ICC)is in place to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. The policy extends to all
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and
trainees). During the year no referrals were received
under the policy and no complaints were pending at the
beginning of the year.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the rules made thereunder,
the Board appointed M/s Srinidhi Sridharan & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, as the secretarial
auditor to conduct secretarial audit of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2020. The Report issued by
the secretarial auditor in the prescribed form MR-3 is
annexed to this Report as Annexure E.

The said secretarial audit report does not contain any
qualification or adverse remarks.

ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of annual return as required under section
92(83) of the Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed form
MGT-9 is annexed to this Report as Annexure F. Copy
of the return is available on the Company’s website,
www.cholafhl.com.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company has complied with the applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY AFTER MARCH 31, 2020

There are no material changes and commitments,
affecting the financial position of the Company which
have occurred between March 31, 2020 and the date of
this report.

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

The Company abides by a set of enduring values and
beliefs called the ‘five lights’ viz., the lights of integrity,
passion, quality, respect and responsibility in order
to be a socially responsible business, which would
on a continuous basis, enhance the interests of all its
stakeholders. By steadfastly upholding the principles of
good and robust corporate governance ingrained with
discipline, accountability, transparency and fairness, the
Company constantly endeavours to sustain and enhance
itself as a responsible corporate citizen.
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In terms of regulation 34(2) of the Listing Regulations
the annual report shall include a Business Responsibility
Report (BRR) in the prescribed form. Accordingly, a BRR
is annexed to this Report as Annexure G.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Board of Directors confirm that the Company has
in place a framework of internal financial control and
compliance system, which is monitored and reviewed
by the Audit Committee and the Board, besides the
statutory, internal and secretarial auditors. Further,
pursuant to section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board of Directors confirm that:

a) inthe preparation of the annual financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and that
there were no material departures therefrom;

b) they have, in the selection of the accounting
policies, consulted the statutory auditors and have
applied their recommendations consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020
and of the profit of the Company for the year ended
on that date;

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

d) they have prepared the annual financial statements
on a going concern basis;

e) they have laid down internal financial controls to
be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively during the year ended March 31, 2020;
and

f) proper system has been devised to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively during the year ended March
31, 2020.
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DECLARATIONS / AFFIRMATIONS

e  There were no significant material orders passed by
the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
Company’s going concern status and its operations
in future.

e The Company complies with all applicable laws,
rules, circulars and regulations, including the Master
Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 (‘Directions’), as amended
from time to time, and does not carry on any
activities other than those specifically permitted by
the RBI for CICs.

e RBIl does not accept any responsibility or guarantee
about the present position as to the financial
soundness of the Company or the correctness of
any of the statements or representations made
or opinions expressed by the Company and for
discharge of any liability by the Company.

Neither there is any provision in law to keep, nor does
the Company keep any part of the deposits with RBI
and by issuing a Certificate of Registration to the
Company, RBI neither accepts any responsibility
nor guarantees the payment of deposits to any
depositor or any person who has lent any sum to
the Company.
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Form AOC -1 ANNEXURE A

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint
ventures under Ind-AS

Part A - Subsidiaries (% in Crore)
Cholamandalam Cholamandalam Cholamandalam Cholamandalam
Particulars / Name of the Subsidiary Fi Investment and MS General Iggz;)llt?\nr:sn:raalr?g
inance Company Ltd. Subsidiaries of CIFCL Insurance Ltd.
Company Ltd.
1 Reporting period of the subsidiary 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-20
2 Reporting currency and exchange rate as on
the last date of the relevant financial year in Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
~ the case of foreign subsidiaries.
~ 3 Share capital 163.98 22.50 42.40 298.80 0.05
4 Reserves & Surplus 8,007.86 5.21 5.79 1,306.61 (0.04)

5 Total Assets (Non-Current and

Current Assets) 63,993.04 58.25 54.65 11,888.60 0.01
6 Total Liabilities (Non-Current and
Current Liabilities) 55,821.20 30.54 6.46 10,283.19 -
7 Investments (Non-Current +
Current Investments) 7202 1.93 597 9,027.16 ]
8 Turnover 8,652.89 23.59 38.61 4,484.71 -
9 Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 1,585.73 3.27 (0.77) 216.44 (0.01)
10 Provision / (Reversal) for Tax 533.36 1.01 0.07 91.46 -
11 Profit / (Loss) After Tax 1,052.37 2.26 (0.70) 124.98 (0.01)
12 Proposed Dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
13 % of shareholding 45.50% 100.00% 100.00% 60.00% 99.86%
Note:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations - Cholamandalam Health Insurance Limited
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year - Nil

Part B - Associates and Joint Ventures
Cholamandalam MS Risk

Particulars / Name of the Joint Venture LB PR 2 SRR i Services Limited (Joint
Venture Compan

1 Latest Audited Balance Sheet Date 31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-20

Limited (Associate of CIFCL)

The below data is furnished
based on unaudited financial
statements as of 31-Mar-2020

2  Share of Associate / Joint Venture held by the company on the year end

No. of Shares 1275917 989979
Amount of Investment  in Cr.) 8.00 0.99
Extent of Holding (%) 30.87% 49.50%
3 Description of how there is significant influence By way of shareholding By way of shareholding
4 Reason why the Associate / Joint venture is not consolidated Not applicable Not applicable
5  Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet (% in Cr.) 11.46 12.06
6  Profit / (Loss) for the year € in Cr) (1.35) 4.00
i. Considered in Consolidation (0.42) 1.98
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation (0.93) 2.02
Note:

1. Names of associates/joint ventures which are yet to commence operations - Nil
2. Names of associates/joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year - Nil

For and behalf of the Board

Sridharan Rangarajan M M Murugappan
Director Chairman
Place : Chennai E Krithika N Ganesh

Date :June 15,2020 Company Secretary Manager & Chief Financial Officer
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Report on Corporate Governance ANNEXURE B

Corporate  Governance is about transparency,
accountability and reliability of any organisation. It is about
how an organisation is managed through its business
structure, culture and policies to enhance shareholders’
value and protect the interests of other stakeholders.
Key elements in corporate governance are timely and
adequate disclosure, establishment of internal controls
and high standards of accounting fidelity, product and
service quality.

The Company being a part of Murugappa Group, has
always believed in and practised various elements
of corporate governance. It operates on well-defined
policies and procedures to maintain highest standards
of governance and is committed to uphold the core
values of Murugappa Group viz., integrity, passion,
responsibility, quality and respect. The Company firmly
believes that good corporate governance practices help
to enhance its performance and will continue to focus its
efforts in maintaining high governance standards.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board provides strategic guidance on the affairs
of the Company. The Company’s Board comprises of
eminent professionals from diverse areas viz., banking,
finance, manufacturing and general management. The
Company’s independent directors possess several
years of experience in financial services industry. They
provide independent judgment, external perspective and
objectivity on the issues which are placed before them.

Composition & Changes during the year

The Board has been constituted in an appropriate
manner comprising of independent and non-independent
directors including a woman director, to ensure proper
governance and management. The directors are elected
based on their qualification and expertise in varied fields
as well as industry in which the company operates.

The Company’s Board comprises of six directors viz.,
three independent and three non-independent directors.
Mr. M M Murugappan, Promoter & Non-Executive Director
is the Chairman of the Board. There is no relationship
between the directors inter-se. None of the Directors
on the Board hold directorships in more than ten public
companies. Brief profile of the directors is provided in the
annual report for information of the shareholders.

Ms. Shubhalakshmi Panse, Independent Director,
resigned from the Board on November 20 2019. The
disclosure relating to her resignation is available at
http://www.cholafhl.com/docs/reasonforresg-Nov-21-2019.pdf.
The Company has received a confirmation from
Ms. Panse that there are no other material reasons for
her resignation.

The Board pursuant to the recommendation of
Nomination & Remuneration Committee appointed
Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman as an additional director in
the capacity of an independent director with effect from
February 12, 2020.

The composition of the Board is in compliance with the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’). None of the Directors are
related to each other.

Independent Directors

The Independent Directors, Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat,
Mr. B Ramaratnam and Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman
have submitted declaration confirming that they meet
the criteria of independence as prescribed under the Act
and the Listing Regulations. The Board confirms that in
its opinion the independent directors fulfil the conditions
specified under the Act and the Listing Regulations
and are independent of the management. None of the
independent directors serve as an independent director
in more than seven listed entities.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, considering the
outbreak of COVID-19, granted relaxation for holding
separate meeting of independent directors for the
FY 19-20. However, in compliance with the requirements
under the Act and the Listing Regulations, a separate
meeting of independent directors was held on June 15,
2020 (earlier meeting scheduled on March 25, 2020,
was deferred due to situation on account of COVID-19)
without the attendance of non-independent directors
and members of the management. At the said meeting,
the independent directors reviewed the performance of
the Chairman, non-independent directors and the Board
as a whole during FY 19-20 and assessed the quality,
quantity and timeliness of flow of information between
the management and the Board.
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Directorships and Committee memberships

Number of directorships and memberships / chairmanships of committees held by the directors and their shareholding in
the Company as on March 31, 2020 are given in the table below:

No. of No. of committee

directorships memberships No. of shares

held in CFHL

Name of the Director Category including CFHL including CFHL®
(Out of which as | (Out of which as
Chairman) Chairman)

Chairman / .
1 Mr. M M Murugappan Dirl;’g:(r)r:c;tﬁrED 14(6) 6(4) shgr‘:azs‘lgfs 53‘_“2! ch
2 Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat NED /D 9 7(4) Nil
3 Mr. B Ramaratnam NED /ID 2 4(3) Nil
4  Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman NED / ID 1 1 Nil
5 Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan NED 6 4 Nil
6  Mr.V Ravichandran NED 6(1) 2(1) 4951 equity shares

of ¥1/- each

NED : Non-Executive Director, ID : Independent Director

*includes directorships in public/private/section 8 companies and excludes foreign companies

% includes only memberships in Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Details of directorships held by the Board members in other listed entities as on March 31, 2020 are given in the table below:
SN. | Name of the Director Category Listed Entity

Chairman / NED Tube Investments of India Limited

Chairman / NED Carborundum Universal Limited

Chairman / NED Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited

1 Mr. M M Murugappan Chairman / NED Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company Limited*
Chairman / NED Coromandel International Limited
NED Cyient Limited
NED / ID Mahindra & Mahindra Limited
NED / ID Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited
NED / ID Bata India Limited
2 Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat
NED / ID DCB Bank Limited
NED / ID Birlasoft Limited
3 Mr. B Ramaratnam NED / ID Redington (India) Limited
4 Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman NED / ID -
5 Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan NED Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company Limited*

Chairman / NED E.I.D. Parry (India) Limited

6 Mr. V Ravichandran
NED Coromandel International Limited

NED : Non-Executive Director, ID : Independent Director
* Debt listed entity
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MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Company has a well-established practice with
regard to deciding the dates of meetings. Annual
calendar for the meetings of the Board is finalised early
in consultation with all Board members. However, in
case of urgent business requirements, approval of the
Board / Committee is taken by passing resolution(s)
through circulation, as permitted by law, which is noted
in the subsequent meeting. A minimum of four Board
meetings are held each year. Review and approval of
financial statements of the company, review of business
operations of subsidiary / associate companies, approval
of investments and approval of annual business plan
constitute the primary business of the Board besides
reviewing the compliance matters.

The Company ensures that timely and relevant
information are made available to all directors in order
to facilitate their effective participation and contribution
during the meetings. Seven meetings of the Board
were held during the year ended March 31, 2020 on the
following dates: May 03, 2019, June 14, 2019, August 01,
2019, November 09, 2019, January 22, 2020, January 29,
2020 and February 26, 2020. Maximum gap between two
Board meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty
days during the year.

The attendance (including attendance through video
conferencing) of each director at the Board meetings
held during the year ended March 31, 2020, and at the
70" Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on August 1,
2019 is given in the table below:

No. of Board
attmezztelggi:o Attendance
Name of the Director . | atthe 70"
of meetings AGM
held during
their tenure)
1 Mr.M M Murugappan 7(7) Present
2 Ms. Shubhalakshmi Panse® 3(4) Present
3 Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat 7(7) Not attended
4 Mr. B Ramaratnam 6(7) Present
5 Ms. Vasudha 1(1) Not
Sundararaman® applicable
6 Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan 7(7) Present
7 Mr. V Ravichandran 5(7) Present

@ Resigned on November 20, 2019
$ Appointed from February 12, 2020
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Board - Skills / Expertise / Competencies

The core skills / expertise / competencies identified by
the Board which in its opinion are pertinent for effective
functioning of the Company are Finance, Governance,
Strategy, General Management and Technology.

Areas of expertise of each director are given in the table
below:

Name of the Director Area of expertise

Finance, Governance, Strategy,
General Management and
Technology

Finance, Governance, Strategy
and General Management
Finance, Governance, Strategy
and Technology

Finance, Governance, Strategy
and General Management
Finance, Governance, Strategy
and Technology

Finance, Governance, Strategy
and General Management

Mr. M M Murugappan

Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat

Mr. Ramaratnam

Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman

Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan

Mr. V Ravichandran

Board Training and Induction

At the time of appointment of a director on the Board, the
incumbent director is provided with a directors’ handbook
comprising the compendium of the role, powers, duties
and responsibilities of a director including code of
conduct of the Company, the compliance obligations and
disclosure requirements under the Companies Act, 2013
and the Listing Regulations. The handbook also provides
the directors with an insight into the Group’s practices.

A formal letter of appointment is given to independent
directors at the time of appointment which lays
the role and duties of an independent director. The
terms and conditions of appointment of independent
directors is available on the Company's website at
http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/466.
Key regulatory changes are circulated to the Board every
quarter as part of agenda notes.

The Company has in place familiarisation programme
for directors with regard to their roles, duties, rights,
responsibilities in the company. Directors are familiarised
with the organisational set-up, businesses including its
associate / subsidiary / JV companies, the environment
in which it operates and relevant information pertaining
to the Company.

The details of familiarisation programme are available on
the Company’s website at:
http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/858
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Board Evaluation

Pursuant to the provisions of section 134, schedule
IV and the rules made thereunder of the Act and the
Listing Regulations, performance evaluation of the
Board as a whole, individual directors and committees
of the Board has been carried out for the year ended
March 31, 2020. A structured questionnaire covering
various aspects of Board’s functioning such as Board’s
structure, governance, dynamics & functioning and
financial reporting process was used for completion of
the evaluation process.

As a part of performance evaluation process, each
director evaluated themselves, other Board members, the
overall Board as well as the functioning of the committees
of the Board in which they are members. Independent
directors reviewed the performance evaluation of the
Chairman, non-independent directors and the Board as
a whole. The Board carried out performance evaluation
of independent directors, the overall Board and its
committees. The Chairman briefed the Board on the
evaluation conducted.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Various committees have been constituted as per
regulatory requirements and to support the Board in
discharging its duties efficiently. The committees of the
Board are Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee,
Risk Management Committee and Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee. The Board at the time of
constitution of committees approves the terms of
reference of each committee. Minutes of the meetings of
the Committee(s) are placed before the Board.

Audit Committee

The committee has been constituted in terms of section

177 of the Act and regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations.

Brief terms of reference

+ Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting
process and disclosure of its financial information;

4+ Review of financial statements and auditors’ report;

4+ Recommendation for appointment, remuneration
and terms of appointment of auditors of the
company;

+ Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the company with related parties;

+

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

4+ Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
management systems;

4+ Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and
performance and effectiveness of audit process;

+ Review of internal audit scope / plan and findings.

Composition

The committee comprises of four members viz.,
Mr. B Ramaratnam, Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat, Ms. Vasudha
Sundararaman and Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan. During
the year, Ms. Shubhalakshmi Panse resigned from the
Board and ceases to be a Chairperson / Member of
the committee with effect from November 20, 2019.
Mr. Ramaratnam was elected as the Chairman of the
Committee with effect from January 22, 2020.

Ms. Vasudha has been inducted as a committee member
with effect from February 12, 2020. All committee
members have financial and accounting knowledge. In
order to acquaint the members of the Audit Committee
of their roles and responsibilities, a hand book on Audit
Committee is provided to members at the time of
induction.

Meetings and Attendance

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the committee
met six times. The Manager & Chief Financial Officer, the
internal auditor and statutory auditors are invited to attend
quarterly meetings of the Committee. The committee
members had a meeting with the representatives of
statutory auditors at separate session without the
presence of management on May 3, 2019 and November
9, 2019.

The attendance (including attendance through video
conferencing) of each member at the committee meetings
held during the year is given in the table below:

No. of meetings
attended (no. of

Name of the Member Category | meetings held

during their

Ms. Shubhalakshmi Panse © NED /1D 3(4)
Mr. B Ramaratnam NED / ID 5(6)
Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat NED / ID 6(6)
Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman® NED /ID -

Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan NED 6(6)
NED : Non-Executive Director, ID : Independent Director

@ Ceases to be a member from November 20, 2019

% Inducted as a member from February 12, 2020
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Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The committee has been constituted in terms of section
178 of the Act and regulation 19 of the Listing Regulations.

Brief terms of reference

+ Formulation of criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director
and recommend to the Board a policy relating to,
the remuneration for the directors, key managerial
personnel and other employees;

+ Identify persons who are qualified to become
directors, recommend to the Board any new
appointments including re-appointments;

+ Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance
of independent directors and the Board;

+ Devising a policy on Board diversity;

+ Recommend to the Board, the remuneration
including commission payable to non-executive
directors subject to the statutory limits;

+ Implement, administer and monitor the Employee
Stock Option Plan / Schemes of the Company.

Composition

The committee comprises of three members viz.,
Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat, Mr. M M Murugappan and
Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman. Mr. Barat is the Chairman
of the committee. During the year Ms. Shubhalakshmi
Panse resigned from the Board and ceases to be a
member of the committee with effect from November 20,
2019. Ms. Vasudha has been inducted as a member of
the committee with effect from February 12, 2020.

Meetings and Attendance

The committee met twice during the year ended March
31, 2020. The attendance (including attendance through
video conferencing) of each member at the committee
meetings held during the year is given in the table below:
No. of meetings

attended (no. of

Name of the Member meetings held

Category

Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat NED / ID 2(2)
Mr. M M Murugappan NED 2(2)
Ms. Shubhalakshmi Panse® NED / ID 1(2)
Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman® NED/ID NA

NED : Non-Executive Director, ID : Independent Director
@ Ceases to be a member from November 20, 2019
% Inducted as a member from February 12, 2020

Remuneration to Directors

The success of the organisation in achieving good
performance and governance depends on its ability to
attract quality individuals as executive and independent
directors. The compensation to the non-executive
directors takes the form of commission on profits paid
in proportion to their tenure on Board. Though the
shareholders have approved payment of commission up
to one per cent of the net profits of the Company for each
year calculated as per the provisions of the Companies
Act 2013, the actual commission paid to the directors
will be restricted to a fixed sum. The sum is reviewed
periodically taking into consideration various factors
such as performance of the Company, time devoted
by the directors in attending to the affairs and business
of the Company and the extent of responsibilities cast
on the directors under various laws and other relevant
factors.

The non-executive directors are also paid sitting
fees subject to the statutory ceiling for all Board and
Committee meetings attended by them. Considering
their enhanced roles and responsibilities, the commission
payable to non-executive directors has been revised
from %5,00,000/- to %¥7,50,000/- each from FY 19-20.
During the year, the sitting fee payable to non-executive
directors for attending the Board and Committee
meetings has been revised. Directors are paid sitting
fee of ¥50,000/- each for attending every meeting of the
Board and Audit Committee and ¥30,000/- each for every
meeting of other committees of the Board.

Details of commission provided for / sitting fees paid to
non-executive directors during the year ended March 31,

2020 are given in the table below: (in?)
Mr. MM Murugappan 750000 340000 1090000
Ms. Shubhalakshmi Panse 477459 165000 642459
Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat 750000 495000 1245000
Mr. B Ramaratnam 750000 445000 1195000
gﬂjﬁ\ﬁ;gﬁan 100410 50000 150410
Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan 750000 510000 1260000
Mr. V Ravichandran 750000 200000 950000
Total 4327869 2205000 6532869

@Commission subject to deduction of tax would be paid after adoption of
accounts by shareholders at the 71t AGM
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Policy - Board Diversity, Board Nominations and
Remuneration

In compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Board on recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has framed
following policies:

A Board Diversity policy;
A Policy on Board nominations;

A Remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees of the Company.

The Board Diversity Policy sets out the approach to
diversity on the Board of the Company in order to ensure
a process which is transparent with diversity of thought,
experience, knowledge, perspective and gender on the
Board.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is
responsible for identifying persons for nomination as
directors and evaluating incumbent directors. The
policy for Board nomination lays down qualifications,
positive attributes and independence criteria for Board
positions and re-appointment of directors. The Board,
while considering a person for appointment as director,
determines suitability of the person based on qualification,
track record, expertise, integrity and also ensure that the
appointee fulfills the ‘fit and proper’ status of Directors.

The remuneration policy provides a framework to
ensure reasonableness and sufficiency of remuneration
so that the Company attracts, retains and motivates
resources. The policy reflects remuneration philosophy
of the group and considers factors to ensure pay
structures are appropriately aligned. The above
policies are available on the Company’s website at
http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/600.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The committee has been constituted in terms of section
178 of the Act and regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations.

Brief terms of reference

+ Formulation of shareholders servicing plans and
policies, approval of valid requests for transfer and
transmission of shares, splitting and consolidation
of shares etc;

+ Consider and resolve grievances of security holders
of the Company including complaints relating to
transfer / transmission of shares, non-receipt of
annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends,

issue of new / duplicate certificates, general
meetings etc;

+ Review adherence to the service standards in
respect of various services rendered by the Registrar
& Share Transfer Agent;

+ Approval of share transfers, transmissions and
transpositions and delegation thereof.

Composition

The committee comprises of three members viz.,
Mr. MM Murugappan (Chairman), Mr. B Ramaratnam
and Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan. Ms. E Krithika, Company
Secretary is the Compliance Officer.

Meetings and Attendance

The committee met twice during the year ended March
31, 2020. The attendance of each member at the
committee meetings held during the year is given in the
table below:

No. of meetings
attended (no. of
meetings held during
their tenure

Name of the Member

Category

Mr. M M Murugappan NED 2(2)
Mr. B Ramaratnam NED /1D 2(2)
Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan NED 2(2)

NED : Non-Executive Director, ID : Independent Director

Risk Management Committee

The committee has been constituted in terms of
regulation 21 of the Listing Regulations.

Brief terms of reference

+ Review risk management policy and monitor its
implementation;

+ Review process for systematic identification and
assessment of the business risks including cyber
security;

+ Periodic monitoring of critical risk exposures and
report to the Board the details of any significant
developments and action taken to manage the
exposures.

Composition

The committee comprises of four members viz.,
Mr. MM Murugappan (Chairman), Mr. B Ramaratnam,
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Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan and Mr. N Ganesh (Manager &
Chief Financial Officer).

Meetings and Attendance

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the committee
meeting was held on November 9, 2019 and the
attendance of each member at the meeting is given in
the table below:

No. of meetings
attended (no. of

Name of the Member D(:eastiZ?\:?i,o/n mdeet_ings hc_eld
uring their

Mr. M M Murugappan NED 1(1)

Mr. B Ramaratnam NED / ID 1(1)

Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan NED 1(1)

Mr. N Ganesh Manager & CFO 1(1)

NED : Non-Executive Director, ID : Independent Director

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

The Committee has been constituted in terms of section
135 of the Act and the rules made thereunder.

Brief terms of reference

+ Formulation and recommendation to the Board, a
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, indicating
activities to be undertaken by the Company as
specified under Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013;

4+ Recommendation of CSR budget to the Board;

4+ Monitor CSR activities undertaken by the Company
from time to time.

Composition

The committee comprises of three members viz.,
Mr. MM Murugappan (Chairman), Mr. Ashok Kumar
Barat and Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan.

Meetings and Attendance

During the year ended March 31, 2020, the committee
meeting was held on May 3, 2019 and the attendance of
each member at the meeting is given in the table below:

No. of meetings
attended (no. of

Name of the Member meetings held during

Category

Mr. M M Murugappan NED 1(1)
Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat NED /ID 1(1)
Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan NED 1(1)

NED : Non-Executive Director, ID : Independent Director
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company Limited
(CMSGICL) is a material subsidiary of the Company
as per regulation 16(1)(c) of the Listing Regulations.
Mr. M M Murugappan and Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan are
also on the Board of CMSGICL. Pursuant to the Listing
Regulations, policy on material subsidiaries has been
formulated by the Board.

The policy is available on the Company’s website at
http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/475.

Cholamandalam Health Insurance Limited is a subsidiary
of the Company. The Audit Committee reviews the
financial statements of subsidiary / associate / joint
venture companies and investments made by them.
Minutes of board meetings of subsidiary companies
are placed before the Board at its quarterly meetings
along with a statement of significant transactions
and arrangements if any, entered into by them.
The Board reviews the business performance of
major subsidiary and associate companies every
half year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions which were entered into with related
parties during the year were in the ordinary course
of business and on an arms’ length basis. In terms of
section 177 of the Act and regulation 23 of the Listing
Regulations, the Audit Committee reviews transactions
with related parties every quarter. During the year there
were no material transactions entered into with related
parties which may have potential conflict with the interest
of the Company. Disclosure of transactions with related
parties as required under IND AS is set out under Note 23
of the financial statements in the annual report.

The Board has formulated a policy on related party
transactions. Copy of the policy is available on the
Company’s website at:
http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/476.

CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT
MANAGEMENT

IN SENIOR

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee is
responsible for identifying persons who are qualified to
be appointed in senior management. The committee in
terms of section 178 of the Act has formulated criteria
for appointment of personnel in senior management
comprising attributes viz., personal traits, competencies,
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experience and background. These attributes are
considered for nominating candidates in senior
management position.

SUCCESSION PLANNING

The Company has a mechanism in place to ensure
planned succession for appointments to the Board and
to senior management.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The audited as well as un-audited financial results of the
Company are informed to the Stock Exchanges as soon
as these are approved by the Board. Financial results
are published in English in ‘Business Standard’ and ‘The
New Indian Express’ and in Tamil in ‘Dinamani’. A press
release is given along with the publication of the quarterly
/ annual results, explaining the business environment and
performance in order to enable the investing community
to understand the financial results better.

The financial results, shareholding pattern, corporate
governance report, corporate announcements and other
communications to stock exchanges are available under
the ‘Investors’ section on the Company’s website. The
investors’ presentation and call transcripts are also
posted on the Company’s website. Disclosures and other
communications are intimated in electronic mode through
web portals of stock exchanges for dissemination of
such information to the public at large.

The Company sends annual report, intimation of
dividend payment, notices for general meetings and
postal ballot by e-mail to those shareholders whose
e-mail ids are registered with the Company / Depository
Participants and in hard copies to those shareholders
whose e-mail ids are not registered. In view of COVID-19,
as permitted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
the Annual Report for FY 19-20 and the notice for
71t AGM is being sent by the Company in electronic form
to the registered email addresses of the shareholders.
Shareholders who have not registered their email, may
refer the procedure to obtain the aforesaid documents
provided in the notice for 71t AGM of the Company.

INVESTOR SERVICE

The Company attends to investors’ queries / grievances
in a timely manner and valid requests for share
transfers and transmissions are processed within
the regulatory time frame. KFin Technologies Private
Limited (KFin) is the Company’s Registrar and Share

Transfer Agent. Share transfers, transmissions, issue of
duplicate share certificate(s), etc., as well as requests
for dematerialisation / rematerialisation are processed
by KFin at periodical cycles. No investor complaint
was received during the year. Two investor complaints
pending at the beginning of the year, were resolved
and closed during the year. In order to expedite the
redressal of complaints, if any, investors are requested
to register their complaints to the exclusive e-mail id:
investorservices@cfhl.murugappa.com for monitoring
follow up action taken.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

The Company has systems in place to remain updated
with changes in statutes and the means of compliance.
An affirmation regarding compliance with the applicable
statutes by the Compliance Officer is placed before
the Board on a quarterly basis besides circulation of
compliance highlights along with the agenda notes.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company is conscious of the importance of internal
processes and controls. The Company has adequate
internal control systems and review mechanism in place
commensurate with the nature of its business and size.
These systems are regularly reviewed and improved
upon. A certificate from the Manager & Chief Financial
Officer with regard to financial statements and internal
control systems has been submitted to the Board in
terms of regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations.

DISCLOSURES REGARDING COMMODITY PRICE
RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company being an investment company does not
have exposure to commodity risks and hedging activities.

WHISTLEBLOWER / VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a whistleblower / vigil
mechanism for the employees and the directors as an
avenue to voice concerns relating to unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s
Code of Conduct. The Ombudsperson appointed by the
Board deals with the complaints received and ensures
appropriate action. Report from Ombudsperson is
placed before the Audit Committee every quarter. The
mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards
against victimisation of persons using the mechanism
and provides direct access to the chairperson of the
Audit Committee in exceptional cases. During the year,
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no personnel have been denied access to the Audit
Committee.

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The Company has framed a dividend distribution policy as
required under regulation 43A of the Listing Regulations.
Copy of the policy is available on the Company’s website
at http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/601.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has laid down a code of conduct for all
directors and senior management of the Company as
required under regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations.
The code is available on the Company’s website at
http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/383.
The directors and the senior management personnel
have furnished their affirmation of compliance with the
code for the year ended March 31, 2020. A declaration
of affirmation in this regard certified by the Manager &
Chief Financial Officer, is annexed to this report.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has framed and adopted a code of
conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by
designated persons in the securities of the Company
(Code for designated persons), as required under the
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
(SEBI PIT Regulations). The Code requires pre-clearance
for dealing in the Company’s shares for all transactions
by the designated persons and prohibits the purchase or
sale of Company securities by designated persons while
in possession of unpublished price sensitive information
(UPSI) in relation to the Company. Further, trading in
Company’s securities is also prohibited for designated
persons during the period when the trading window is
closed. A policy containing procedures for conduct of
inquiry in case of leakage of UPSI or suspected leakage
of UPSI forms part of the Code for designated persons.

Further, in terms of the aforesaid regulations, the
Company has formulated a code for fair disclosure
of UPSI and a policy for determination of ‘legitimate
purposes’ for communicating / procuring UPSI. The Code
for fair disclosure is available on the Company’s website
at http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/493.

FEES PAID TO STATUTORY AUDITORS / NETWORK
FIRM / NETWORK ENTITY OF WHICH THE
STATUTORY AUDITOR IS A PART

Total fees for all services paid by the Company and its
subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory
auditor and all entities in the network firm / network entity
of which the statutory auditor is a part, for the year ended
March 31, 2020 is furnished in the table below:

(X in Crore)

Fees for audit and related services paid to

M/s S R Batliboi & Affiliates firms and to
entities of the network of which the statutory
auditor is a part

Other fees paid to M/s S R Batliboi & Affiliates

firms and to entities of the network of which  0.96
the statutory auditor is a part

Total 4.40

3.44

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
NORMS

The Company has complied with all mandatory
requirements of corporate governance norms as required
under the Listing Regulations.

NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

The quarterly financial results were published in leading
newspapers and uploaded on the Company’s website
and any major developments were covered in the press
releases issued by the Company and also posted on the
Company’s website. Expenses incurred by the directors
in performance of their duties if any, are reimbursed.
As the Company does not have a Managing Director
(MD) / Chief Executive Officer (CEQO), separate posts of
Chairperson and MD / CEO does not arise. The Internal
Auditor reports to the Audit Committee directly. Further,
there are no audit qualifications on the Company’s
financial statements.

CERTIFICATION FROM THE STATUTORY AUDITORS

The statutory auditors have issued a certificate regarding
compliance with the provisions relating to corporate
governance as per Chapter IV of the Listing Regulations.
The certificate is annexed to this report.




Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

CERTIFICATION FROM THE PRACTICING COMPANY
SECRETARY

In terms of the Listing Regulations, a certificate has
been obtained from M/s Srinidhi Sridharan & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, that none of the
directors on the Board of the Company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or
continuing as directors of companies by the Securities
and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such other statutory authority. The
certificate is annexed to this report.

OTHER DISCLOSURES

A Management Discussion and Analysis Report
highlighting the performance of individual businesses
forms part of the Board’s Report. The Company has
complied with all regulatory requirements. During the last
three years, there were no instances of non-compliance
by the Company and no penalty or strictures were
imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges or

Securities and Exchange Board of India or any statutory
authority, on any matter relating to the capital markets. The
Company has not raised any funds through preferential
allotment or qualified institutional placement during the
year. There was no instance of non-acceptance by the
Board of any recommendations of its Committees during
the year.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

A separate section forms part of the Annual Report
furnishing other details viz., last three Annual General
Meetings, its time and venue, share price movement,
distribution of shareholding etc., for shareholders’
reference.

On behalf of the Board

Place : Chennai
Date :June 15, 2020

M M Murugappan
Chairman

Annexure to the Report on Corporate Governance

Declaration on Code of Conduct

To the Members of
Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited

This is to confirm that the Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board members and senior management of the
Company. The Code of Conduct has also been posted on the website of the Company.

It is further confirmed that all directors and senior management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with
the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020, as envisaged under regulation 34(3) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Place : Chennai
Date :June 15, 2020

N Ganesh
Manager & Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure to the Report on Corporate Governance

Independent Auditor’s Report on compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as per provisions of Chapter IV of Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
as amended

The Members of
Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

1. The Corporate Governance Report prepared by Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Tl Financial Holdings Limited) (hereinafter the “Company”), contains details as specified in regulations 17 to 27,
clauses (b) to (i) of sub - regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D, and E of Schedule V of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended
(“the Listing Regulations”) (‘Applicable criteria’) for the year ended March 31, 2020 as required by the Company for
annual submission to the Stock exchange.

Management’s Responsibility

2. The preparation of the Corporate Governance Report is the responsibility of the Management of the Company
including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility also
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Corporate Governance Report.

3. The Management along with the Board of Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India.

Auditor’s Responsibility

4. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, our responsibility is to provide a reasonable assurance in the
form of an opinion whether, the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in
the Listing Regulations.

5.  We conducted our examination of the Corporate Governance Report in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes and the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). The Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for
Special Purposes requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

6. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality
Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and
Related Services Engagements.

7. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks associated in
compliance of the Corporate Governance Report with the applicable criteria. Summary of procedures performed
include:

i Read and understood the information prepared by the Company and included in its Corporate Governance
Report;

ii. Obtained and verified that the composition of the Board of Directors with respect to executive and non-executive
directors has been met throughout the reporting period;

iii. Obtained and read the Register of Directors as on March 31, 2020 and verified that atleast one independent
woman director was on the Board of Directors throughout the year;
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iv. Obtained and read the minutes of the following committee meetings / other meetings held from April 01, 2019
to March 31, 2020:

(@) Board of Directors;

(b) Audit Committee;

(c) Annual General Meeting (AGM);

(d) Nomination and Remuneration Committee;

(e) Stakeholders Relationship Committee;

() Corporate Social Responsibility Committee; and

(9) Risk Management Committee.

v.  Obtained necessary declarations from the directors of the Company;

vi. Obtained and read the policy adopted by the Company for related party transactions;

vii. Obtained the schedule of related party transactions during the year and balances at the year end. Obtained
and read the minutes of the audit committee meeting where in such related party transactions have been
pre-approved prior by the audit committee;

viii. Performed necessary inquiries with the management and also obtained necessary specific representations
from management.

8. The above-mentioned procedures include examining evidence supporting the particulars in the Corporate
Governance Report on a test basis. Further, our scope of work under this report did not involve us performing audit
tests for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the fairness or accuracy of any of the financial information or the
financial statements of the Company taken as a whole.

Opinion

9. Based on the procedures performed by us, as referred in paragraph 7 above, and according to the information and

explanations given to us, we are of the opinion that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as specified in the Listing Regulations, as applicable for the year ended March 31, 2020, referred to in
paragraph 4 above.

Other matters and Restriction on Use

10. This report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

11. This report is addressed to and provided to the members of the Company solely for the purpose of enabling it to
comply with its obligations under the Listing Regulations with reference to compliance with the relevant regulations
of Corporate Governance and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we
do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care or for any other purpose or to any other party to whom it
is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing. We have no responsibility to update
this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Subramanian Suresh

Partner

Place : Chennai Membership Number: 083673

Date :June 15, 2020 UDIN: 20083673AAAABC8124
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Annexure to the Report on Corporate Governance
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V Para-C sub clause (10) (i) of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

The Members,

CHOLAMANDALAM FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
CIN: L65100TN1949PLC002905

(Formerly known as TI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED)
Dare House, No.234, N S C Bose Road, Chennai- 600001

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
CHOLAMANDALAM FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (Formerly known as Tl FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED)
(CIN: L65100TN1949PLC002905) having its Registered Office at Dare House, No0.234, N S C Bose Road,
Chennai - 600001 (hereinafter referred to as “The Company”) produced before us by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V Part-C sub clause 10 (i) of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and according to the verifications (including Director Identification Number
(DIN) Status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) and based on such examination as well as information and explanations
furnished to us, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of issue of this certificate
and based on such verification as considered necessary, we hereby certify that none of the Directors as stated below on
the Board of the Company as on 315t March 2020 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other
statutory authority.

. . . Date of
m“ ame of the Birector GBeoRinsnt

1 00170478 M M Murugappan Non-Executive-Chairman 11/11/2017
2 00492930 Ashok Kumar Barat Non-Executive-Independent Director 01/08/2018
3 01814413 Sridharan Rangarajan Non-Executive-Non-Independent Director 30/08/2018
4 07525213 Balasubramanyan Ramaratnam Non-Executive-Independent Director 18/03/2019
5 00110086 V Ravichandran Non-Executive-Non-Independent Director 18/03/2019
6 06609400 Vasudha Sundararaman Non-Executive-Independent Director 12/02/2020

Ensuring the eligibility of, for the appointment/ continuity of, every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Srinidhi Sridharan & Associates
Company Secretaries

CS Srinidhi Sridharan

CP No. 17990

ACS No. 47244

Place : Chennai UIN: S2017TN472300
Date :June 15, 2020 UDIN: A047244B000341824
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General Shareholder Information

Registered Office

‘Dare House’, No. 234, NSC Bose Road,
Chennai 600 001

Corporate Identification Number (CIN)
L65100TN1949PLC002905

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Day : Wednesday

Date : August 12, 2020

Time : 3.30 pm

Mode : Through Video Conferencing / Other

Audio Visual means
FINANCIAL YEAR
April 1 to March 31
TENTATIVE CALENDAR FOR FY 2020-21

The tentative calendar for Board meetings for approving
the quarterly financial results is given below:

Results for the first quarter
Ending 30" June, 2020 — 12" August, 2020

Results for the second quarter / half-year
Ending 30" September, 2020 — 3 November, 2020

Results for the third quarter
Ending 31st December, 2020 - January / February, 2021

Results for the fourth quarter
Ending 31t March 2021 / Annual Results for FY 2020-21
- April / May, 2021

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors had approved an interim dividend
on the equity shares at the rate of 65% (30.65/- per equity
share of %1/- each) on February 26, 2020 for FY 19-20,
which was paid to shareholders on March 13, 2020.
The Board has not recommended any final dividend for
FY 19-20.

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

National Stock Exchange .
of India Limited BSE Limited

Exchange Plaza, Plot no. Floor 25, Phiroze
C/1, G Block, Bandra-Kurla  Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Complex, Bandra (E) Dalal Street, Fort
Mumbai - 400 051. Mumbai- 400 001.

Stock Code: CHOLAHLDNG Scrip Code: 504973

Listing fee for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been
paid to the above Stock Exchanges on time.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT

KFin Technologies Private Limited (‘KFin’) is the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) of the Company. The
name of the Company’s RTA had been changed to
KFin Technologies Private Limited from Karvy Fintech
Private Limited effective December 5, 2019 and the
stock exchanges have been intimated in this regard. The
shareholders are requested to address their share related
requests / queries to the RTA.

Contact details of RTA

KFin Technologies Private Limited

(Unit : Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited)
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial District,
Gachibowli, Hyderabad - 500 032, Telangana

Phone: 040-67161514, Fax: 040-23420814

Toll free: 1800-345-4001

E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com;

Website: https://karisma.kfintech.com/

Contact person: Mr. Rajkumar Kale - Senior Manager -
Corporate Registry

TRANSFER OF DIVIDEND / SHARES TO INVESTOR
EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

Pursuant to the provisions of section 124 of the Act and
the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016
as amended from time to time, shares in respect of
which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven
consecutive years or more is required to be transferred
from the unpaid dividend account of the Company to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund (‘IEPF’)
established by the Central Government.
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The Company sends periodic intimation to the
shareholders concerned, advising them to claim dividend
from the Company. Further, the Company has published
notices in newspaper regarding the due date for transfer
of dividend and shares to the IEPF. The Company has
transferred unclaimed / unencashed dividends upto the
interim dividend for FY 2012-13, from time to time, to the
IEPF. Members are requested to contact the Company or
the Company’s RTA to claim the unpaid dividend within
the prescribed period.

Details of unclaimed / unpaid dividends lying with the
Company as on March 31, 2019 is available on the
Company’s website at www.cholafhl.com/investors/706
and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs at www.iepf.gov.in.
No claim shall lie against the Company for the amounts
so transferred nor shall any payment be made in respect
of such claims.

Details of dividend paid by the Company and the
respective due dates for transfer of the unclaimed/
un-encashed dividend to the IEPF is given in the table
below:

Due date of

transfer to
IEPF

Date of

Financial year to which
Declaration

the dividend relates

2012-13 - Final 02.08.2013  07.09.2020
2013-14 - Interim 04.02.2014 12.03.2021
- Final 06.08.2014 11.09.2021
2014-15 - Interim 04.02.2015 12.03.2022
- Final 10.08.2015 16.09.2022
2015-16 - Interim 04.02.2016  12.03.2023
- Final 08.08.2016  13.09.2023
2016-17 - Interim 06.02.2017 14.03.2024
2017-18 - Interim 05.02.2018 12.03.2025
- Final 31.07.2018 06.09.2025
2018-19 - Interim 04.02.2019 12.03.2026
- Final 01.08.2019  07.09.2026
2019-20 - Interim 26.02.2020  03.04.2027

During the FY 19-20, the Company has transferred 93040
equity shares of ¥1/- each pertaining to 87 shareholders,
to the demat account of the IEPF. Members / claimants
may claim their shares and dividend transferred to the
IEPF by following the procedure for refund as detailed
on the website of IEPF at www.iepf.gov.in. Details of the
nodal officer of the Company for the purpose of IEPF
is available on the Company’s website. As at March
31, 2020, 744945 equity shares were lying in the IEPF
account.

INSTRUCTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS
(@) Mode of Dividend Payment

Shareholders can make use of National Automated
Clearing House (NACH) facility to receive dividends
directly to their bank accounts thereby avoiding the
hassles relating to handling of physical warrants
besides elimination of risk of loss in postal transit /
fraudulent encashment of warrants. Accordingly,
shareholders are requested to provide bank account
details to their Depository Participants (‘DPs’) / RTA,
to process the dividend payments through NACH
mode. If there is any change in bank account details,
shareholders are requested to advise their DPs /
Company’s RTA, as the case may be, immediately
about the change.

In case of non availability of bank account details,
dividend is paid to shareholders by way of warrants /
cheques / demand drafts.

(b) Shareholders holding shares in physical form

Requests for change of address shall be sent to
the Company’s RTA, KFin, for facilitating them to
forward the dividend warrants to the latest address
of members. Members are also advised to intimate
their bank account details to RTA, to enable
incorporation of the same on dividend warrants.
This would help prevent any fraudulent encashment
of dividend warrants.

(c¢) Investor Service System

As per SEBI mandate, with effect from April 1, 2019,
securities of listed companies can be transferred only
in dematerialised form. In view of this requirement,
members who hold shares in physical form are
requested to get their shares dematerialized to avalil
the benefits of dematerialisation.

Request for transfer / transmission / transposition
of shares and other requests from shareholders
holding shares in physical form are processed by
the Company’s RTA, KFin. The Board has delegated
powers to the Stakeholders Relationship Committee
to approve requests of shareholders. Requests of
transfer and transmission of shares are processed
within the regulatory time frame. Periodical
confirmation / reports with regard to share transfers
are obtained for monitoring investor service system.
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DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ COMPLAINTS

Complaints pending as on April 1, 2019 2
Compilaints received during the year Nil
Compilaints resolved during the year 2
Complaints pending as on March 31, 2020 Nil

* 2 complaints which were pending in the beginning of the year related to non-receipt of share certificate pursuant to transfer and
non-receipt of dividend & deletion of joint holder’s name.

MARKET PRICE DATA AND COMPARISON

Monthly high and low price of the Equity Shares of the Company during FY 19-20 are as follows:

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. BSE Ltd.

High(in?) | Low(n?) High (in?) | Low(in?)

Apr-19 516.95 484.55 2775082 510.70 480.50 1413743
May-19 520.25 491.95 2271769 519.70 491.90 383910
Jun-19 500.75 466.75 1803107 505.00 466.05 6979
Jul-19 496.80 454.00 3502205 498.85 456.00 1366099
Aug-19 483.60 440.55 4352375 483.25 433.65 470525
Sep-19 497.75 430.35 1829114 499.90 429.50 181631
Oct-19 483.35 446.60 1258983 486.20 450.15 17188
Nov-19 499.99 467.25 1650482 500.00 466.40 210716
Dec-19 502.55 481.75 1892689 504.20 480.70 51700
Jan-20 5569.25 503.15 4507998 559.95 503.15 1047471
Feb-20 549.90 513.00 2060115 549.55 508.00 123284
Mar-20 518.35 290.00 5824310 517.35 290.05 191257

CFHL Share price performance in comparison with NSE NIFTY
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SHAREHOLDING PATTERN AS ON MARCH 31, 2020

% of shareholding

Promoter & Promoter Group 91589469 48.79
Mutual Funds /UTI 42809076 22.81
Banks, Financial Institutions, Insurance Companies 3831336 2.04
Foreign Institutional Investors 19326689 10.30
Bodies Corporate 5247442 2.80
Resident Individuals 19736891 10.52
Bank of New York Mellon (Depository for GDR holders) 23460 0.01
NRI and Others 5151667 2.73
Total 187716030 100.00

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON MARCH 31, 2020

Category (Shares) No. of shareholders % to shareholders % to Equity

upto 1 - 5000 20638 96.27 9257267 4.93
5001 - 10000 309 1.44 2266171 1.21
10001 - 20000 177 0.82 2525978 1.35
20001 - 30000 64 0.30 1544380 0.82
30001 - 40000 40 0.19 1416233 0.75
40001 - 50000 20 0.09 915939 0.49
50001 - 100000 50 0.23 3633618 1.94
100001 & Above 142 0.66 166156444 88.51
Total 21485 100.00 187716030 100.00
Physical 711 3.31 1149336 0.61
Demat / electronic 20774 96.69 186566694 99.39
Total 21485 100.00 187716030 100.00

NOMINATION FACILITY

The shareholders holding shares in physical form may avail the nomination facility under Section 72 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The nomination form (Form SH.13), along with instructions, will be provided to the members on request.
The shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to forward their nomination instructions to the
concerned depository participants. Nomination is optional and can be cancelled or varied by a shareholder at any time.

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

The Equity Shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in dematerialised form. The code number allotted by the
National Securities Depository Ltd (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Ltd (CDSL) to Cholamandalam Financial
Holdings Limited (formerly, Tl Financial Holdings Limited) is ISIN INE149A01033.

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

The Company obtains a certificate on quarterly basis, from the Company Secretary in practice on reconciliation of share
capital audit with regard to the total admitted equity share capital with NSDL and CDSL and those held in physical form,
with the issued and listed capital under regulation 55A of the SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulation, 1996. The
certificate is submitted to the stock exchanges and placed before the Board at its quarterly meetings.

GDR DETAILS

As at March 31, 2020, 23460 Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) were outstanding representing an equal number of
underlying Equity Shares. The GDRs stand delisted/ withdrawn for trading from Luxembourg Stock Exchange, effective
May 18, 2011.
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COMMODITY PRICE RISK / FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
The Company is into investment business and has no exposure to commodity price risk and commodity hedging activities.
Foreign currency trade exposures are monitored regularly.

DETAILS OF SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED DURING THE LAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS

Date of AGM Whether any Special Resolution was passed m

September 25, 2017 No -
July 31,2018 No -
August 1, 2019 Yes Approval of remuneration by way of

commission to Non-Executive Directors

The shareholders approved the said special resolution with requisite majority.

POSTAL BALLOT
No postal ballot was conducted during the FY 19-20. Further, at present, there is no proposal to pass any resolution
through postal ballot.

GENERAL BODY MEETING
The date, time and venue of the last three Annual General Meetings are given in the table below:

Year | Date | Time Venue

2016-17 September 25, 2017 11.30 AM T T K Auditorium, The Music Academy,
2017-18 July 31,2018 3.00 PM No. 168 (Old No.306), T T K Road,
2018-19 August 1, 2019 3.00 PM Chennai - 600 014

UNCLAIMED SHARES

In accordance with regulation 34(3) and Schedule V - Part F of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, details in respect of equity shares lying in the Unclaimed Suspense Account of the Company are given
in the table below:

E!l No. of shareholders

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the

Unclaimed Suspense Account lying as on 01.04.2019 1073 1048496
2 Number of shareholders who approached for transfer of their shares 65 74970
from the Unclaimed Suspense Account during the year
3 Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the
. . 65 74270
Unclaimed Suspense Account during the year
4 Number of shareholders whose shares were transferred to the Investor 48 76870
Education & Protection Fund during the year
5  Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares lying in 960 897356

the Unclaimed Suspense Account as on 31.03.2020

Shareholders who continue to hold the share certificates with face value of 310 / %2 each are entitled to claim the Equity
Shares with face value of 1 each from the Unclaimed Suspense Account. The voting rights on the shares outstanding
in the suspense account as on March 31, 2020 shall remain frozen till the rightful owner of such share claims the shares.
On receipt of the claim, the Company will, after verification, arrange to credit the Equity Shares to the demat account of
the shareholder concerned or deliver the share certificate to the shareholder in physical mode after re-materialisation.

Contact details:

For assisting and handling investor grievances:

Ms. E Krithika

Compliance Officer & Company Secretary

‘Dare House’, No.234, NSC Bose Road, Chennai - 600 001

E-mail : investorservices@cfhl.murugappa.com, krithikae@cfhl.murugappa.com
Phone: 044 - 4090 7638; Fax: 044 - 4211 0404
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ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL ANNEXURE C
RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs:

Outline of the Company’s CSR Policy

The Murugappa Group is known for its tradition of philanthropy and community service. The Company being part of the
Murugappa Group, has been earmarking a part of its income for carrying out its social responsibilities. The Company’s
philanthropic endeavours are a reflection of its spiritual conscience and this provides it a way to discharge its responsibilities
to various sections of the society.

The CSR policy of the Company inter alia provides for identification of CSR projects and programs, modalities of execution
and monitoring process. The policy gives an overview of the projects or programs, which would be undertaken by the
Company from time to time. Improving access to education was the key focus area during the year.

The CSR policy is available on the Company’s website at http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/467.
2. The composition of the CSR Committee:

Mr. M M Murugappan, Chairman

Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat

Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: 3278 Lakh

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): 36 Lakh

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

a. Total amount spent for the financial year: ¥11 Lakh

b.  Amount unspent, if any : Nil

c.  Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:  in Lakh)
Projects or Programs Aennt
. (1) Local area or spent on the . Amount spent
GSR Project/ | which the S Amount outiay | projects or | | SCRIBI | - Direct (D)
Activity identified projectis | (2) State and district (budget) project programs 4o the reporting | . " through
covered where Project or program wise [ —1) Direct eriod implementing
or Program was expenditure P agency (IA)
TG 2) Overheads
Education to girl . Mirzapur District,
children in rural areas Education Uttar Pradesh 1.0 1.0 1.0 A (IMPACT)

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years
or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report:

Not applicable

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in
compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the company:

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives
and Policy of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Place : Chennai Sridharan Rangarajan M M Murugappan
Date :June 15, 2020 Director Chairman — CSR Committee
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ANNEXURE D

Information under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(i) Details of employees in terms of remuneration drawn during the financial year 2019-20 as per Rule 5(2) and
Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014:

Qualification Date of
5 . Gross
Name Designation / and commencement

remuneration Previous employment
(Age) Nature of duties experience | of employment / et

id (in%
paid (in3) (years) deputation

Cholamandalam

NG h M & B.Com, ACA
anes . .anagfer ! 80,10,630 om August 9, 2017  Investment and Finance
47) Chief Financial Officer (24 years) o
Company Limited
hol lam M
E Krithika M.Com, ACS Cholamandalam MS
Company Secretary 23,34,473 August 9, 2017 General Insurance
(40) (14 years) o
Company Limited
Notes:

1. The Company has 2 employees who are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs). Details of the KMPs are furnished in the table above.

2. Mr. Ganesh is employed on deputation basis from Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited (CIFCL). Remuneration of
Mr. Ganesh represents the cost of deputation paid to CIFCL. Remuneration of Ms. Krithika given above includes salary, allowances, company’s
contribution to provident fund / gratuity fund and perquisites computed as per Income Tax Act / Rules.

3. None of the above employees are related to any director of the Company and hold any shares in the Company.
4. None of the above employees are vested with stock options under the Company’s Employee Stock Option Schemes.

(ii) Ratio of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the
financial year:

Name of the Director Category m

Mr. M M Murugappan Chairman & Non-Executive Director 0.21:1
Ms. Shubhalakshmi Panse* Independent Director 0.24:1
Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat Independent Director 0.24:1
Mr. B Ramaratnam Independent Director 0.24:1
Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman* Independent Director 0.24:1
Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan Non-Executive Director 0.24:1
Mr. V Ravichandran Non-Executive Director 0.19:1

* Resigned on November 20, 2019
* Appointed from February 12, 2020

Note: 1. Above remuneration includes sitting fees paid during the year.
2. Remuneration of directors is annualised.
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(iii) Percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer &
Company Secretary in the financial year:

Directors are paid sitting fees at the same scale for attending Board and Committee meetings. In addition to sitting
fees, a fixed sum is paid as a commission to all directors, proportionate to their tenure on the Board.

Name of the Director Category

Mr. M M Murugappan Chairman & Non-Executive Director 44.4
Ms. Shubhalakshmi Panse* Independent Director 455
Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat Independent Director 42.3
Mr. B Ramaratnam Independent Director 50.0
Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman* Independent Director NA
Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan Non-Executive Director 46.5
Mr. V Ravichandran Non-Executive Director 53.8

* Resigned on November 20, 2019
* Appointed with effect from February 12, 2020
Note: Sitting fees & Commission payable to NEDs were revised during the year.

Increase in remuneration of KMPs : Manager & CFO - 12.6%; Company Secretary - 18%
(iv) Percentage increase in median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 13.7%
(v) Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31.03.2020

Two employees i.e. the Manager & CFO and the Company Secretary.

(vi) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel
in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial
remuneration.

Not applicable since there are no employees other than the managerial personnel.
(vii) Affirmation

The Company affirms that the remuneration is in line with its Remuneration Policy.

On behalf of the Board

Place : Chennai M M Murugappan
Date :June 15, 2020 Chairman
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Secretarial Audit Report

ANNEXURE E

for the financial year ended 315t March, 2020

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 as amended]

The Members,

CHOLAMANDALAM FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Formerly known as “TI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED”)
CIN: L65100TN1949PLC002905

Dare House, No.234, N S C Bose Road, Chennai - 600001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by CHOLAMANDALAM
FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (Formerly known
as “TI FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED”) [Corporate
Identification ~ Number:  L65100TN1949PLC002905]
hereinafter called “the Company”. Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of
Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31t March, 2020 complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on 31t March,
2020 according to the provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules
made there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956
(“SCRA”) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and
Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv)

The Company has not dealt with the matters relating
to Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings
under FEMA and hence, the requirement of
complying with the provisions of Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made there under does not arise;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the
company during the audit period);

d) The Employee Stock Option Plan, 2016
approved under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014 and the Employee
Stock Option Scheme, 2007 approved under
the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the
company during the audit period);

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;
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g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
(Not applicable to the company during the
audit period); and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018
(Not applicable to the company during the
audit period);

(v We have reviewed the systems and mechanisms
established by the Company for ensuring
compliances under the other applicable Acts,
Rules, Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under
various laws which are specifically applicable to
the Company and categorized under the following
major heads/groups:

a) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Rules,
Regulations, guidelines, circulars, directions,
notifications made there under;

b) Non-Banking Financial (Non-Deposit
Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007;

c) NBFC Auditors Report Reserve Bank
Directions, 1998;

d) NBFC Public Deposits RBI Directions 1998.

With respect to the applicable financial laws such as
direct and indirect tax laws, based on the information &
explanations provided by the management and officers
of the Company and certificates placed before the Board
of Directors, we report that adequate systems are in
place to monitor and ensure compliance.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable
clauses / regulations of the following:

() Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of
Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings
(SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company
Secretaries of India;

(i) The Uniform Listing Agreement entered into with
BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of
India Limited pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned
above.

0 Management Reports @ Financial Statement 0‘

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness
of financial records and books of accounts of the
Company.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted
with proper balance of Non-Executive and Independent
Directors. The company has appointed “Manager”
pursuant to Sections 196 and 203 of the Companies
Act, 2013. The changes in the composition of the Board
of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions
of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all the directors before
schedule of the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining
further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting. The meeting convened at shorter notice
and notes on agenda which are circulated less than
the specified period, the necessary compliances under
the Companies Act, 2013 and Secretarial Standards
on Board Meeting are complied with. The necessary
compliances of Rule 3 & 4 of the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 have been complied
with in respect of meetings convened through Video
Conferencing / Audio Visual means.

Based on the verification of the records and minutes, the
decisions at the Board / Committee Meetings were taken
with the consent of the Board of Directors / Committee
Members and no Director / Member had dissented on
any of the decisions taken at such Board / Committee
Meetings. Further in the minutes of the General Meeting,
the Members who voted against the resolution(s) have
been recorded.

We further report that based on review of compliance
mechanism established by the Company we are of the
opinion that the management has adequate systems and
processes commensurate with its size and operations, to
monitor and ensure compliance with all applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that the above mentioned Company
being a Listed entity, this report is also issued pursuant
to Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended
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and circular  No.CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019  dated
8" February, 2019 issued by Securities and Exchange
Board of India.

We further report that as per the information and
explanations provided by the Management, the Company
does not have any Material Unlisted Subsidiary(ies)
Incorporated in India as defined in Regulation 16(1)(c)
and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

We further report that during the audit period, the
Company has

1. Registered as a Core Investment Company and
issued certificate of registration (COR) dated
January 6, 2020 by the Reserve Bank of India under
section 45lA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

2.  Obtained the approval of the Board of Directors
at their meeting held on 14" June, 2019 to make
a long term investment upto a sum not exceeding
35 Crores by way of purchase of upto 10,00,000
equity shares of 2/- each of Cholamandalam
Investment and Finance Company Limited from
Ambadi Investments Limited at the prevailing
market price.

3. Obtained the approval of the Board of Directors at
their meeting held on 22" January, 2020 as follows:

- To make an investment in preferential issue
of Cholamandalam Investment & Finance
Company Limited aggregating to an amount of
350 Crores at a face value of ¥2/- each per
equity share.

- To borrow an amount not exceeding I500
Crores by way of overdrafts, cash credits,
term loan, commercial papers, inter corporate
borrowings and such other facilities.

For Srinidhi Sridharan & Associates
Company Secretaries

CS Srinidhi Sridharan

CP No. 17990

ACS No. 47244

UIN: S2017TN472300
UDIN: A047244B000341791

Place : Chennai
Date :June 15, 2020
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Form No. MGT-9 Extract of Annual Return ANNEXURE F

as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

Corporate Identification Number (CIN) : L65100TN1949PLC002905
2 | Registration Date . 9 September, 1949
3 | Name of the Company : Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited

(Formerly, Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

4 | Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Public Company / Limited by shares
5 | Address of the Registered Office and contact : “Dare House”, No. 234, N S C Bose Road, Chennai - 600 001
details Phone: 044 42177770-5; Fax: 044 42110404

E-mail: investorservices@cfhl.murugappa.com

6 | Whether listed company : Yes

7 |Name, Address and Contact details of : KFin Technologies Private Limited

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any (Unit: Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited)
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Financial District,
Gachibowli, Hyderabad - 500 032, Telangana
Phone : (040) - 67161514
Fax : (040) - 23420814
Toll free Number: 1800-345-4001
E-mail: einward.ris@kfintech.com
Website: https://karisma.kfintech.com/
Contact person: Mr. Rajkumar Kale - Senior Manager -
Corporate Registry

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover
main products / services Product / Service of the Company

Investment Activity 6430 91.11%

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

H 0,
Holding/ ZX Applicable

Section

Name and Address of the Company CIN/GLN Subsidiary/ | shares
Associate held

1 Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Ltd.*

“Dare House”, No.2, N S C Bose Road, Chennai - 600 001 L65993TN1978PLC 007576 Associate 45.50 2(6)

2 Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company Ltd.

“Dare House”, No.2, N S C Bose Road, Chennai - 600 001 UB6030TN2001PLC047977 Subsidiary 60.00 2(87)(ii)

3  Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Ltd. Joint

“Dare House”, No.2, N'S C Bose Road, Chennai - 600001 ~ U74140TN1994PLC029257 49.50 26)

4 Cholamandalam Health Insurance Ltd.

“Dare House”, No2, N'S C Bose Road, Chennai - 600001  UBB020TN2017PLC117783  Subsidiary ~ 99.86  2(87)(i)

*Treated as a subsidiary under Ind-AS
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(i) Category-wise Shareholding

No. of shares held at the No. of shares held at the .
beginning of the year (01-Apr-2019) end of the year (31-Mar-2020) ot

Category of Shareholders F— o~ during the
Physical Total o ottota Physical Total o ot fofa year
shares shares

(A) PROMOTER AND PROMOTER

GROUP
(1)  INDIAN
() Individual /HUF 13483452 - 13483452 7.18 10841722 - 10841722 5.78 (1.40)

(b)  Central Government/
State Government(s)

(c) Bodies Corporate 72424485 - 72424485 38.59 73124485 - 73124485 38.95 0.36
(d)  Financial Institutions / Banks - - - - - - - - -
(e) Others: 5606730 - 5606730 299 7606230 - 7606230 4.05 1.06

Sub-Total A(1) : 91514667 - 91514667 48.76 91572437 - 91572437 48.78 0.02
(2) FOREIGN

(@) Individuals (NRls /
Foreign Individuals)

b) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - - - _

Institutions - - - - - - - - -

)
(d)  Qualified Foreign Investor - - - - - - - - -
(€)

e) Others: 17032 - 17032 0.01 17032 - 17032 0.01 -
Sub-Total A(2) : 17032 - 17032 0.01 17032 - 17032 0.01 -
Total A=A(1)+A(2) 91531699 - 91531699 48.77 91589469 - 91589469 48.79 0.02

(B) PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
(1) INSTITUTIONS

() Mutual Funds /UT] 31743146 - 31743146 1691 42809076 - 42800076  22.80 5.89
(b)  Financial Institutions / Banks 903302 7350 910742 049 887860 7350 895210 0.48 0.01)
(c)  Central Government / i i i i i ) ) i i
State Government(s)
(d)  Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -
(e) Insurance Companies 2936126 - 2936126 156 2936126 - 2936126 1.56 -
U Eg:::g: g‘jﬂ:ﬁ:ﬁ?:\'{';;ﬁf:om/ 19317555 236660 19554215 1042 19090020 236660 19326689  10.30 0.12)
(g Foreign Venture Capital Investors - - - - - - - - -
) ﬁf{';es'tsm(m";jizgltemate 1546551 - 1546551 082 1575049 - 1575049 0.84 0.02
Sub-Total B(1) : 56446770 244010 56690780 3020 67208140 244010 67542150  35.98 5.78
() NON-INSTITUTIONS
() Bodies Corporate 9672562 4140 9676702 516 5254902 4140 5250042 2.80 (2.36)
(b)  Individuals
() Individuals holding nominal 20001 4003081 17723072 944 15865798 844156 16709954 8.90 (054)

share capital upto 31 lakh

(i) Individuals holding nominal
share capital in excess of 5300007 - 5300007 2.82 3026937 - 3026937 1.61 (1.21)
1 lakh
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No. of shares held at the No. of shares held at the .
beginning of the year (01-Apr-2019) end of the year (31-Mar-2020) % Change

Category of Shareholders oot total Yot total during the
Physical | Total | 7% ‘%@ Physical | Total [ 72| year
shares shares

(c) Others:
Clearing Members 252252 - 252252 0.13 63404 - 63404 0.03 (0.10)
Non Resident Indians 2129388 57030 2186418 117 2447787 57030 2504817 1.33 0.16
Trusts 106046 - 106046 0.06 107725 - 107725 0.06 -
Others (IEPF, QIB etc.,) 1363005 - 1363005 0.73 889072 - 889072 0.47 (0.25)
Sub-Total B(2) : 35542351 1065151 36607502 19.51 27655625 905326 28560951 15.22 (4.29)
Total B=B(1)+B(2) : 91989121 1309161 93298282 49.71 94953765 1149336 96103101 51.20 1.49
Total (A+B) : 183520820 1309161 184829981 98.48 186543234 1149336 187692570 99.99 1.51
(C) SHARES HELD BY CUSTODIANS
FOR GDRS & ADRS
(1) Promoter and Promoter Group - - - - - - - - -
(2) Public 2862253 - 2862253 1.52 23460 - 23460 0.01 (1.51)
Sub-Total C: 2862253 - 2862253 1.52 23460 - 23460 0.01 (1.51)
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) : 186383073 1309161 187692234 100.00 186566694 1149336 187716030 100.00

Note: The increase in paid up share capital is on account of allotment of shares to option grantees under the Company’s ESOP Schemes.

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding at the beginning of the year | Shareholding at the end of the year

% of the % of the % Change in
% of total shares % of total shares shareholding
Shareholder’s Name No.of | shares pledged/ | No.of | shares pledged/ |~ guring the
shares of the encumbered | shares of the encumbered year
company to total company to total
shares shares

1 MV Murugappan® 863980 0.46 - - - - (0.46)
2 MYV Subbiah 744150 0.40 - 171200 0.09 - (0.31)
3 S \Vellayan 430250 0.23 - - - - (0.23)
4 A\Vellayan 631900 0.34 - 631900 0.34 - -
5 V Narayanan 281140 0.15 - 281140 0.15 - -
6V Arunachalam 338990 0.18 - 338990 0.18 - -
7 A Venkatachalam* 764610 0.41 0.020 764610 0.41 - -
8  Arun Venkatachalam 198130 0.11 - 198130 0.11 - -
9 MM Murugappan 842405 0.45 - 842405 0.45 - -
10 M M Veerappan - - - - - - -
11 M M Muthiah - - - - - - -
12 M M Venkatachalam 407900 0.21 0.002 4000 0.00 0.002 (0.21)
13 MV Muthiah - - - - - - -
14 MYV Subramanian - - - - - - -
15 M A Alagappan 840660 0.45 0.003 840660 0.45 0.003 -
16 Arun Alagappan 833090 0.44 - 833090 0.44 - -
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Shareholding at the beginning of the year

Shareholding at the end of the year

% of the % of the % Change in
% of total shares % of total shares shareholding
Shareholder’s Name No. of shares pledged/ No. of shares pledged/ during the
shares of the encumbered | shares of the encumbered year
company to total company to total
shares shares
17 M A M Arunachalam 618820 0.33 - 618820 0.33 - -
18 Valli Arunachalam 543330 0.29 - 543330 0.29 - -
19 E.LD. Parry (India) Ltd. - - - - - - -
20  Coromandel International Ltd. - - - - - - -
21 New Ambadi Estates Private Ltd. - - - - - - -
22 Tube Investments of India Ltd. - - - - - - -
23 Ambadi Enterprises Ltd. 1058200 0.56 - 1058200 0.56 - -
24 Ambadi Investments Ltd. 70066595 37.33 - 70766595 37.70 - 0.37
25 Carborundum Universal Ltd. 1000 0.00 - 1000 0.00 - -
26 M/s Murugappa & Sons* - - - 863980 0.46 - 0.46
(M 'V Subbiah, M A Alagappan &
M M Murugappan hold shares on behalf
of the firm)
Total 79465150 42.34 0.025 78758050 41.96 0.005 (0.38)

# Transfer of shares from Mr. M V Murugappan to M/s Murugappa & Sons (firm reconstituted during the year)
* Pledge released during the year
Note : The above table does not include holdings of promoter group aggregating to 12831419 shares (6.83%) as at March 31, 2020

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative shareholding
during the year

Increase/
Name of the Shareholder % of total Decrease in % of total
No. of shares | sharesofthe | shareholding | No. of shares | shares of the
company company

1 01/04/2019 MV Murugappan 863980 0.46

06/03/2020 Decrease (863980)

31/03/2020 - -
2 01/04/2019 MV Subbiah 744150 0.40

03/06/2019 Decrease (176460)

28/06/2019 Decrease (396490)

31/03/2020 171200 0.09
3 01/04/2019 S Vellayan 430250 0.23

03/06/2019 Decrease (430250)

31/03/2020 - -
4 01/04/2019 M M Venkatachalam 407900 0.21

27/09/2019 Decrease (403900)

31/03/2020 4000 0.002
5 01/04/2019 Ambadi Investments Ltd. 70066595 37.33

16/08/2019 Increase 700000

31/03/2020 70766595 37.70
6 01/04/2019 M/s. Murugappa & Sons - -

06/03/2020 Increase 863980

31/03/2020 863980 0.46
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

ing at the beginning Cumulative shareholding during
19) / end of the year Increase/ the year
Shareholder’s Name Decrease in share| Reason 01-Apr-2019 to 31-Mar-2020
No. of shares
of the compan
1 HDFC TRUSTEE COMPANY LIMITED - 12237390 6.52 30/03/2019 12237390 6.52
A/C HDFC BALANCED FUND 05/04/2019 (249500) Sale 11987890 6.39
22/11/2019 (100000) Sale 11887890 6.33
29/11/2019 (401642) Sale 11486248 6.12
20/12/2019 (158521) Sale 11327727 6.03
31/12/2019 (221000) Sale 11106727 5.92
03/01/2020 (902049) Sale 10204678 5.44
o 10204678 5.44 31/03/2020 10204678 5.44
2 RELIANCE CAPITAL TRUSTEE CO 7376923 3.93  30/03/2019 7376923 3.93
LTD. A/C RELIANCE BALANCED 05/04/2019 220785 _ Purchase 7597708 4.05
ADVANTAGE FUND 12/04/2019 21728  Purchase 7619436 4.06
19/04/2019 100672 _ Purchase 7720108 4.11
26/04/2019 448112 _ Purchase 8168220 4.35
03/05/2019 334210 _ Purchase 8502430 4.53
10/05/2019 468032 _ Purchase 8970462 4.78
10/05/2019 (4698) Sale 8965764 4.78
17/05/2019 141032 _ Purchase 9106796 4.85
24/05/2019 30421  Purchase 9137217 4.87
24/05/2019 (181900) Sale 8955317 4.77
31/05/2019 2664 _ Purchase 8957981 4.77
07/06/2019 22990 _ Purchase 8980971 4.78
14/06/2019 (120) Sale 8980851 4.78
21/06/2019 41459 _ Purchase 9022310 4.81
28/06/2019 598721 _ Purchase 9621031 513
05/07/2019 700720 _ Purchase 10321751 5.50
05/07/2019 (197670) Sale 10124081 5.39
12/07/2019 312 _ Purchase 10124393 5.39
19/07/2019 641 Purchase 10125034 5.39
26/07/2019 288 _ Purchase 10125322 5.39
02/08/2019 8879  Purchase 10134201 5.40
09/08/2019 233078 _ Purchase 10367279 5.52
09/08/2019 (14409) Sale 10352870 5.52
16/08/2019 18920 _ Purchase 10371790 5.53
23/08/2019 46583 _ Purchase 10418373 5.55
30/08/2019 25331 _ Purchase 10443704 5.56
30/08/2019 (50000) Sale 10393704 5.54
06/09/2019 200072 _ Purchase 10593776 5.64
06/09/2019 (200000) Sale 10393776 5.54
13/09/2019 168 _ Purchase 10393944 5.54
20/09/2019 168 _ Purchase 10394112 5.54
27/09/2019 49274 _ Purchase 10443386 5.56
04/10/2019 111674 _ Purchase 10555060 5.62
11/10/2019 13998 _ Purchase 10569058 5.63
18/10/2019 144 _ Purchase 10569202 5.63
01/11/2019 100216 _ Purchase 10669418 5.68
08/11/2019 72 _ Purchase 10669490 5.68
15/11/2019 (312) Sale 10669178 5.68
22/11/2019 (293) Sale 10668885 5.68
29/11/2019 (6129) Sale 10662756 5.68
06/12/2019 208978 _ Purchase 10871734 5.79
06/12/2019 (1151) Sale 10870583 5.79
13/12/2019 156837 _ Purchase 11027420 5.87
20/12/2019 124924 _ Purchase 11152344 5.94
27/12/2019 1572 _ Purchase 11153916 5.94
31/12/2019 23 _ Purchase 11153939 5.94
03/01/2020 690 _ Purchase 11154629 5.94
10/01/2020 381935 Purchase 11536564 6.15
17/01/2020 576173 _ Purchase 12112737 6.45
24/01/2020 897 _ Purchase 12113634 6.45
31/01/2020 50000 _ Purchase 12163634 6.48
31/01/2020 (759) Sale 12162875 6.48

07/02/2020 492226  Purchase 12655101 6.74




Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding during
(01-Apr-2019) / end of the year Increase/ the year
Shareholder’s Name 2020) Decrease in share| Reason 19to 3
0. of shares No. of shares
of the compan of the compan
14/02/2020 34193 _ Purchase 12689294 6.76
21/02/2020 (1058) Sale 12688236 6.76
28/02/2020 520043 _ Purchase 13208279 7.04
28/02/2020 (126) Sale 13208153 7.04
06/03/2020 1070410 _ Purchase 14278563 7.61
06/03/2020 (869589) Sale 13408974 714
13/03/2020 999910 _ Purchase 14408884 7.68
13/03/2020 (891000) Sale 13517884 7.20
20/03/2020 332681 Purchase 13850565 7.38
20/03/2020 (2132) Sale 13848433 7.38
27/03/2020 459720 _ Purchase 14308153 7.62
27/03/2020 (161) Sale 14307992 7.62
31/03/2020 1219 _ Purchase 14309211 7.62
o 14309211 7.62 _31/03/2020 14309211 7.62
3 ICICI PRUDENTIAL SMALLCAP FUND 58 0.00 _ 30/03/2019 58 0.00
19/04/2019 355 _ Purchase 413 0.00
26/04/2019 (355) Sale 58 0.00
17/05/2019 98 _ Purchase 156 0.00
24/05/2019 49 Purchase 205 0.00
07/06/2019 4404 _ Purchase 4609 0.00
14/06/2019 63769 _ Purchase 68378 0.04
21/06/2019 3697 _ Purchase 72075 0.04
28/06/2019 4950 _ Purchase 77025 0.04
05/07/2019 80049 _ Purchase 157074 0.08
12/07/2019 2581 _ Purchase 159655 0.09
19/07/2019 148646 _ Purchase 308301 0.16
26/07/2019 1718666 _ Purchase 2026967 1.08
02/08/2019 7635 Purchase 2034602 1.08
09/08/2019 330906 _ Purchase 2365508 1.26
16/08/2019 152987 _ Purchase 2518495 1.34
23/08/2019 128346 _ Purchase 2646841 1.41
30/08/2019 335277 _ Purchase 2982118 1.59
06/09/2019 105374 _ Purchase 3087492 1.64
20/09/2019 68747 _ Purchase 3156239 1.68
27/09/2019 73 _ Purchase 3156312 1.68
30/09/2019 47 _ Purchase 3156359 1.68
04/10/2019 47 _ Purchase 3156406 1.68
11/10/2019 47 _ Purchase 3156453 1.68
18/10/2019 7 _ Purchase 3156460 1.68
25/10/2019 47 _ Purchase 3156507 1.68
01/11/2019 1_ Purchase 3156508 1.68
15/11/2019 748 _ Purchase 3157256 1.68
15/11/2019 (1791) Sale 3155465 1.68
22/11/2019 47 _ Purchase 3155512 1.68
22/11/2019 (2189) Sale 3153323 1.68
20/12/2019 (1851) Sale 3151472 1.68
27/12/2019 40 _ Purchase 3151512 1.68
10/01/2020 47 _ Purchase 3151559 1.68
17/01/2020 5742 _ Purchase 3157301 1.68
24/01/2020 39733 _ Purchase 3197034 1.70
31/01/2020 73989  Purchase 3271023 1.74
07/02/2020 62586 _ Purchase 3333609 1.78
14/02/2020 12765 _ Purchase 3346374 1.78
14/02/2020 (23) Sale 3346351 1.78
28/02/2020 10252 _ Purchase 3356603 1.79
06/03/2020 50120 _ Purchase 3406723 1.81
13/03/2020 18469 _ Purchase 3425192 1.82
20/03/2020 117964 _ Purchase 3543156 1.89
27/03/2020 254788 _ Purchase 3797944 2.02
31/03/2020 214924  Purchase 4012868 214
o 4012868 2.14  31/03/2020 4012868 2.14
4 GAGANDEEP CREDIT CAPITAL PVT 3371256 1.80 _ 30/03/2019 3371256 1.80
LTD 28/06/2019 (174000) Sale 3197256 1.70

12/07/2019 (359819) Sale 2837437 1.51
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Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding during
(01-Apr-2019) / end of the year Increase/ the year
Shareholder’s Name 2020) Decrease in share 19to 3
0. of shares No. of shares
of the compan of the compan
19/07/2019 (40181) Sale 2797256 1.49
26/07/2019 (26738) Sale 2770518 1.48
02/08/2019 (373) Sale 2770145 1.48
23/08/2019 (270356) Sale 2499789 1.33
30/08/2019 (604) Sale 2499185 1.33
22/11/2019 (146000) Sale 2353185 1.25
31/01/2020 (375342) Sale 1977843 1.05
07/02/2020 (478658) Sale 1499185 0.80
14/02/2020 (42920) Sale 1456265 0.78
21/02/2020 (3371) Sale 1452894 0.77
28/02/2020 (2421) Sale 1450473 0.77
13/03/2020 (26306) Sale 1424167 0.76
20/03/2020 (3036) Sale 1421131 0.76
27/03/2020 (14724) Sale 1406407 0.75
31/03/2020 (475) Sale 1405932 0.75
o 1405932 0.75 31/03/2020 1405932 0.75
5 FRANKLIN INDIA EQUITY HYBRID 3232219 1.72 _30/03/2019 3232219 1.72
FUND 13/12/2019 6072430 _ Purchase 9304649 4.96
13/12/2019 (2950758) Sale 6353891 3.38
20/12/2019 281461 Purchase 6635352 3.53
20/12/2019 (281461) Sale 6353891 3.38
17/01/2020 (50000) Sale 6303891 3.36
31/03/2020 50000 _ Purchase 6353891 3.38
o 6353891 3.38 _31/03/2020 6353891 3.38
6 LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION 2936046 1.56 _ 30/03/2019 2936046 1.56
~ OFINDIA 31/03/2020 no movement 2936046 1.56
7 UTI (MULTI ASSET FUND) 2925027 1.56 _ 30/03/2019 2925027 1.56
05/04/2019 (120027) Sale 2805000 1.49
19/04/2019 (100000) Sale 2705000 1.44
03/05/2019 (347500) Sale 2357500 1.26
10/05/2019 (425365) Sale 1932135 1.03
09/08/2019 (100000) Sale 1832135 0.98
16/08/2019 (150000) Sale 1682135 0.90
30/08/2019 (137523) Sale 1544612 0.82
06/09/2019 (184002) Sale 1360610 0.72
13/09/2019 (34161) Sale 1326449 0.71
20/09/2019 (558043) Sale 768406 0.41
22/11/2019 (100000) Sale 668406 0.36
o 668406 0.36 _ 31/03/2020 668406 0.36
8 THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON 2862253 1.52 _30/03/2019 2862253 1.52
02/08/2019 (1000000) Sale 1862253 0.99
30/08/2019 (1000000) Sale 862253 0.46
31/01/2020 (838793) Sale 23460 0.01
o 23460 0.01 _ 31/03/2020 23460 0.01
9 TOYOTA TSUSHO CORPORATION 2700000 1.44 30/03/2019 no movement 2700000 1.44
o 31/03/2020 2700000 1.44
10 SHAMYAK INVESTMENT PRIVATE 2348880 1.25 _30/03/2019 2348880 1.25
LIMITED 19/04/2019 (500000) Sale 1848880 0.99
26/04/2019 (500000) Sale 1348880 0.72
06/12/2019 (200000) Sale 1148880 0.61
20/12/2019 (200000) Sale 948880 0.51
03/01/2020 (348880) Sale 600000 0.32
17/01/2020 (500000) Sale 100000 0.05
. 100000 0.05 _ 31/03/2020 100000 0.05
11 ADITYA BIRLA SUN LIFE TRUSTEE 1934000 1.03  30/03/2019 1934000 1.03
PRIVATE LIMITED A/C 05/04/2019 66000 Purchase 2000000 1.07
12/04/2019 10000 _ Purchase 2010000 1.07
26/04/2019 322000 _ Purchase 2332000 1.24
26/04/2019 (300000) Sale 2032000 1.08
03/05/2019 7611 _ Purchase 2039611 1.09
10/05/2019 40400 _ Purchase 2080011 1.11
17/05/2019 19989 _ Purchase 2100000 1.12
24/05/2019 76428  Purchase 2176428 1.16

31/05/2019 13300 Purchase 2189728 117




Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding during
(01-Apr-2019) / end of the year Increase/ the year
Shareholder’s Name 2020) Decrease in share| Reason 19to 3
0. of shares No. of shares
of the compan of the compan
14/06/2019 10272 _ Purchase 2200000 117
21/06/2019 53600 _ Purchase 2253600 1.20
28/06/2019 28000 _ Purchase 2281600 1.22
05/07/2019 118400 _ Purchase 2400000 1.28
12/07/2019 26011 _ Purchase 2426011 1.29
12/07/2019 (46300) Sale 2379711 1.27
19/07/2019 70289  Purchase 2450000 1.31
26/07/2019 64755 _ Purchase 2514755 1.34
09/08/2019 49200 _ Purchase 2563955 1.37
30/08/2019 32976 _ Purchase 2596931 1.38
06/09/2019 44073 _ Purchase 2641004 1.41
13/09/2019 14600 _ Purchase 2655604 1.41
20/09/2019 19396 _ Purchase 2675000 1.43
27/09/2019 105067 _ Purchase 2780067 1.48
30/09/2019 506 _ Purchase 2780573 1.48
04/10/2019 109366 _ Purchase 2889939 1.54
11/10/2019 38007 _ Purchase 2927946 1.56
18/10/2019 62560 _ Purchase 2990506 1.59
25/10/2019 65000 _ Purchase 3055506 1.63
01/11/2019 35000 _ Purchase 3090506 1.65
15/11/2019 10300 _ Purchase 3100806 1.65
22/11/2019 15700 _ Purchase 3116506 1.66
29/11/2019 49358  Purchase 3165864 1.69
06/12/2019 15028 _ Purchase 3180892 1.69
06/12/2019 (95000) Sale 3085892 1.64
13/12/2019 (105000) Sale 2980892 1.59
20/12/2019 9614 _ Purchase 2990506 1.59
20/12/2019 (100000) Sale 2890506 1.54
27/12/2019 63000 _ Purchase 2953506 1.57
03/01/2020 9000 _ Purchase 2962506 1.58
03/01/2020 (50) Sale 2962456 1.58
10/01/2020 (97500) Sale 2864956 1.53
17/01/2020 (152450) Sale 2712506 1.45
24/01/2020 10000 _ Purchase 2722506 1.45
24/01/2020 (250000) Sale 2472506 1.32
31/01/2020 540000 _ Purchase 3012506 1.60
07/02/2020 300000 _ Purchase 3312506 1.76
07/02/2020 (44869) Sale 3267637 1.74
21/02/2020 32231 Purchase 3299868 1.76
28/02/2020 10145 _ Purchase 3310013 1.76
06/03/2020 30493 _ Purchase 3340506 1.78
13/03/2020 23469 _ Purchase 3363975 1.79
20/03/2020 51531 _ Purchase 3415506 1.82
27/03/2020 108554 _ Purchase 3524060 1.88
27/03/2020 (200000) Sale 3324060 1.77
31/03/2020 25000 _ Purchase 3349060 1.78
o 3349060 1.78 _ 31/03/2020 3349060 1.78
12 HSBC GLOBAL INVESTMENT FUNDS 920735 0.49  30/03/2019 920735 0.49
- INDIAN EQUITY 05/04/2019 412631 Purchase 1333366 0.71
31/05/2019 45000 _ Purchase 1378366 0.73
25/10/2019 111071 _ Purchase 1489437 0.79
13/12/2019 95559 _ Purchase 1584996 0.84
20/12/2019 240000 _ Purchase 1824996 0.97
03/01/2020 43495  Purchase 1868491 1.00
31/01/2020 38501 _ Purchase 1906992 1.02
o 1906992 1.02 _ 31/03/2020 1906992 1.02
13 KOTAK EQUITY OPPORTUNITIES 1228407 0.65 _30/03/2019 1228407 0.65
FUND 12/07/2019 150000 _ Purchase 1378407 0.73
08/11/2019 200000 _ Purchase 1578407 0.84

1578407 0.84 31/03/2020 1578407 0.84
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Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative shareholding during
(01-Apr-2019) / end of the year Increase/ the year
Shareholder’s Name Decrease in share 19to 3
0. of shares No. of shares
of the compan of the compan
14 ANTARA INDIA EVERGREEN FUND 1029207 0.55 _30/03/2019 1029207 0.55
LTD 26/04/2019 (668000) Sale 361207 0.19
17/05/2019 (200000) Sale 161207 0.09
18/10/2019 (10512) Sale 150695 0.08
25/10/2019 (7000) Sale 143695 0.08
01/11/2019 (4885) Sale 138810 0.07
15/11/2019 (7839) Sale 130971 0.07
22/11/2019 (44566) Sale 86405 0.05
13/12/2019 (13682) Sale 72723 0.04
20/12/2019 (23096) Sale 49627 0.03
27/12/2019 (49627) Sale 0 0.00
31/01/2020 838793 _ Purchase 838793 0.45
27/03/2020 490000 _ Purchase 1328793 0.71
31/03/2020 509111 _ Purchase 1837904 0.98
31/03/2020 (263208) Sale 1574696 0.84
1574696 0.84 31/03/2020 1574696 0.84

v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Shareholding at the Cumulative shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
For each of the Directors and KMP % of total % of total
No. of shares | shares of the |No. of shares | shares of the
Company Company

1 Mr. M M Murugappan, Non-Executive Director

At the beginning of the year 842405 0.45 - -
Date-wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 842405 0.45 842405 0.45

2 Ms. Shubhalakshmi Panse, Independent Director®

At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date-wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the year - - - -

At the end of the year - - - -
3 Mr. Ashok Kumar Barat, Independent Director

At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date-wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the year - - - -

At the end of the year - - - -
4 Mr. B Ramaratnam, Independent Director

At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date-wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the year - - - -

At the end of the year - - - -
5 Ms. Vasudha Sundararaman, Independent Director*

At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date-wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the year - - - -

At the end of the year - - - -
6 Mr. Sridharan Rangarajan, Non-Executive Director

At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date-wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the year - - - -

At the end of the year - - - -
7 Mr. V Ravichandran, Non-Executive Director

At the beginning of the year 4951 0.002 - -

Date-wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the year - - - -

At the end of the year 4951 0.002 4951 0.002




Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

Shareholding at the Cumulative shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
For each of the Directors and KMP % of total % of total
No. of shares | shares of the |No. of shares | shares of the
Company Company

Key Managerial Personnel
8 Mr. N Ganesh, Manager & Chief Financial Officer
At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date-wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the year - - - -
At the end of the year - - - -
9 Ms. E Krithika, Company Secretary
At the beginning of the year - - - -

Date-wise increase / decrease in shareholding during the year - - - -

At the end of the year - - - -
@ Resigned on November 20, 2019
* Appointed from February 12, 2020

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment. (% in Crore)

Deposits Total
P Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

i) Principal Amount' - - - _
i) Interest due but not paid - - - _
ii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) - - - -
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

i) Addition - 199.31 - 199.31
i) Reduction - - - -
Net Change Indebtedness at the end of the financial year - 199.31 - 199.31
i) Principal Amount? - 199.31 - 199.31
i) Interest due but not paid - - - -

ii) Interest accrued but not due - 1.32 - 1.32
Total (i+ii+iii) - 200.63 - 200.63
" Net of unamortised charges - - - -

2 Net of unamortised charges - 0.69 - 0.69

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Manager (% in Crore)
m Particulars of Remuneration
1 Gross Salary

(@) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 -
(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of Income-tax Act, 1961 -
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of Income tax Act, 1961 -
2 Stock Option -
Sweat Equity -

4 Commission
-as % of Profit
- others, specify

5 Others (deputation cost)* 0.80
Total (A) 0.80
Overall Ceiling as per the Act 4.39

* Represents cost of deputation paid / payable to Cholamandalam Investment & Finance Company Limited (includes remuneration as CFO)
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B. Remuneration to the other Directors

Partlculars of Remuneration

(% in Crore)

Ms. Vasudha Total Amount

Ms. Shubhalakshmi | Mr. Ashok Kumar
Independent Directors
Panse® EEE

Fees for attending Board/

Mr. B Ramaratna

RINGETETE EN

Committee Meetings 0.016 0.049 0.045 0.005 0.115
Commission* 0.048 0.075 0.075 0.010 0.208
Others, please specify - - - -

Total (1) 0.064 0.124 0.120 0.015 0.323
(F;er:r;‘ftrt::?\;l‘:;’t’a gBS°ard/ 0.034 0.051 0.020 0.105
Commission* 0.075 0.075 0.075 0.225
Others, please specify - - - -
Total (2) 0.109 0.126 0.095 0.330
Total (B) = (1)+(2) 0.653
Overall Ceiling as per the Act 0.879

@ Resigned on November 20, 2019
*Appointed with effect from February 12, 2020
#Commission payable for FY 2019-20

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than Managing Director / Manager / Whole-time Director

Particulars of Remuneration

1 Gross Salary

(% in Crore)

Key Managerial Personnel

Chief
Financial
Officer

Total
Amount

Company
Secretary

(@) Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 -

(b) Value of perquisites under Section 17(2) of Income tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of Income-tax Act, 1961 - - -

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of Profit
- others, specify

5  Others (deputation cost)*

0.80 - 0.80

Total

0.80 0.23 1.03

*Represents cost of deputation paid / payable to Cholamandalam Investment & Finance Company Limited (includes remuneration as Manager)

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

There were no penalties, punishment or compounding of offences during the year ended March 31, 2020.




Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited

(Formerly

known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

Business Responsibility Report

SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

ANNEXURE G

1 Corporate Identification Number (CIN) L65100TN1949PLC002905
2 | Name of the Company Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited
(Formerly, Tl Financial Holdings Limited)
3 Registered office address ‘Dare House’, No. 234, NSC Bose Road,
Chennai - 600 001

4 | Website www.cholafhl.com
5 | E-malil investorservices@cfhl.murugappa.com
6 Financial Year reported April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020
7 | Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in NIC Code Group Description

(industrial activity code-wise) K 6430 Investment Activity
8 | List three key products/services that the Company Investment

manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)
9 | Total number of locations where business activity is 1

undertaken by the Company

(@) Number of International Locations Nil

(Provide details of major 5)

(b) Number of National locations 1

10 | Markets served by the Company National
SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

1 | Paid up capital (INR) %18.77 Crore
2 | Total Turnover (INR) 390.90 Crore
3 | Total profit after taxes (INR) ¥83.33 Crore
4 | Total spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)| 0.13%

as percentage of profit after tax (%)
5 | List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has been | Please refer CSR Report.

incurred

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

1 |Does the Company have any subsidiary company/|Yes. Please refer Board’s report for details.

companies?
2 | Do the subsidiary company/companies participate in the | No

BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then indicate

the number of such subsidiary company(s)
3 |Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors|No

etc.) that the Company does business with, participate in

the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate

the percentage of such entity/ entities? [Less than 30%,

30-60%, More than 60%]




Annual Report 2019-20

0 Corporate Overview @ Management Reports  © Financial Statements 0‘

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1.

2.

Details of Director / Directors responsible for BR:

(@) | Details of the director/directors responsible for implementation of the BR policy/policies

E-mail Id

1. |DIN 01814413

2. |Name Sridharan Rangarajan
3. | Designation Director

4. | Telephone Number 044 - 25306204

5

sridharanr@corp.murugappa.com

(b) | Details of the BR head Same as above

Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/ Policies:
The 9 areas of business responsibility enunciated under the National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental
and Economic Responsibilities of Business (NVGs) released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs are:

Principle (“P”) | Area of BR

Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability;

2 Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability
throughout their life cycle;

3 Businesses should promote the well-being of all employees;

4 Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially
those who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized;

5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights;

6 Businesses should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment;

7 Businesses when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a
responsible manner;

8 Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development;

9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a

responsible manner.

2a. Details of compliance:

E!I_HEIMEMME

Do you have policy/policies for.. v v

1

2 Hasthe policy been formulated in consultation with the relevant stakeholders? v v v v v v v vV v
3 Does the policy conform to any national / international standards? v v v v v v v v v
4 Has the policy been approved by the Board? Is yes, has it been signed by v

MD/ owner/ CEO/ appropriate Board Director?
5 Does the Company have a specified Committee of the Board/Director/Official

to oversee the implementation of the policy?

]

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/688

~

Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant internal and

external stakeholders?

oo

Does the Company have a grievance redressal mechanism related to the

policy/policies to
policies?

address stakeholders’ grievances related to the policy/ v v v v v v v v V

10 Has the Company carried out independent audit/ evaluation of the working of

X X x x x x x x X

this policy by an internal or external agency?
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2b. If answer to Sl. No. 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why:

E_MEEMEEME

The Company has not understood the Principles

2 The Company is not at a stage where it finds itself in a position - - - - - - - - -
to formulate and implement the policies on specified principles

3 The Company does not have financial or manpower resources - - - - - - - - -

available for the task

4 ltis planned to be done within next 6 months

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

5 ltis planned to be done within the next 1 year

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

6 Any other reason (please specify)

3. Governance related to BR

a) |Indicate the frequency with which the Board of|The BR performance is assessed annually.
Directors, committee of the Board or CEO to assess the
BR performance of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6
months, Annually, more than 1 year.

b) |Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability | Yes. The report is published annually and is
Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? | available on the website of the Company at
How frequently it is published? http://www.cholafhl.com/article/investors/688

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1 - Ethics, Transparency & Accountability

a) |Does the policy relating to Ethics, Bribery and Corruption | Yes. The Company being a part of the Murugappa Group,
cover only the Company? Yes / No. Does it extend to the | is driven by the Group’s guiding principles viz., integrity,
Group / Joint Ventures / Suppliers / Contractors / NGOs / | passion, quality, respect and responsibility. The Company
Others? follows ethics, transparency & accountability in its business

conduct. The code of conduct and policies have been
framed to reinforce these values. The subsidiary / associate /
joint venture companies are governed by their respective
policies.

b) | How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the | Nil
past financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily
resolved by the management? If so, provide details thereof.
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Principle 2 - Safety and sustainability of goods & services

a) |List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has | Not applicable. The Company being a Core investment
incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/ | company, it offers financial and risk management services
or opportunities. through its subsidiary / associate / joint venture companies.

The services offered by these companies enhance the
livelihood of people by mitigating financial need and
insurance coverage of health and assets.

b) |For each such product, provide the following details in | Not applicable
respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.)
per unit of product (optional):

(i) Reduction during sourcing / production/ distribution |-
achieved since the previous year throughout the value
chain?

(ii) Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) |-
has been achieved since the previous year?

c) |Doesthe Company have procedures in place for sustainable | Not applicable
sourcing (including transportation)? If yes, what percentage
of your inputs was sourced sustainably?

d) |Has the Company taken any steps to procure goods|The Company is a holding investment company with
and services from local & small producers, including |limited operations. Goods and Services are procured from
communities surrounding their place of work? If yes, |local vendors including communities surrounding the work
what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and | place, wherever feasible.
capability of local and small vendors?

e) | Does the Company have a mechanism to recycle products | Not applicable
and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of
products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%).

Principle 3 - Promotion of wellbeing of employees

a) |Please indicate the total number of employees. 2

b) |Please indicate the total number of employees hired on Nil
temporary/contractual/casual basis.

c) |Please indicate the number of permanent women 1
employees.

d) | Please indicate the number of permanent employees with | Nil
disabilities.

e) | Do you have an employee association that is recognized | No
by management?

f) | What percentage of your permanent employees is Not applicable
members of this recognized employee association?

g) |Please indicate the number of complaints relating to child | No complaints relating to child labour, forced labour,
labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment | involuntary labour and sexual harassment were received
in the last financial year and pending as on the end of the | during the year.
financial year.

h) | What percentage of your employees were given safety & | Nil
skill up-gradation training in the last year?

- Permanent Employees (includes women employees Not applicable

and employees with disabilities)

- Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees Not applicable
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Principle 4 - Responsiveness towards stakeholders
a) |Has the Company mapped its internal and external |Yes. The Company has processes and procedures in place
stakeholders? to engage with the stakeholders.
b) |Out of the above, has the Company identified the|No. However, the company ensures that there is no
disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders? | discrimination against the marginalized stakeholders.
c) |Are there any special initiatives taken by the Company | Not applicable
to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalized stakeholders?
Principle 5 - Promoting human rights
a) |Does the policy of the Company on human rights cover | The Company’s policy on human rights is imbibed in its
only the Company or extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/ | values represented in the five lights guiding the Company,
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others? its group companies and their employees across all
spheres. The alignment with this value system is expected
out of every person dealing with the Company.
b) |How many stakeholder complaints have been received in | Nil
the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily
resolved by the management?
Principle 6 - Protecting the environment
a) |Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the|The Company being a holding investment company with
Company or extends to the Group / Joint Ventures /|limited number of employees, it does not have a direct
Suppliers/ Contractors/NGOs/others. environmental impact.
b) |Does the Company have strategies/initiatives to address | No
global environmental issues such as climate change, global
warming etc.?
c) |Does the Company identify and assess potential|No
environmental risks?
d) |Does the Company have any project related to Clean | Not applicable
Development mechanism?
e) |Has the Company undertaken any other initiatives on -|No
clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy,
etc. ?
f) |Are the emissions/wastes generated by the Company | Not applicable
within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the
financial year being reported?
9) | Number of show cause/legal notices received from CPCB/ | Nil
SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction)
as on end of financial year.
Principle 7 - Responsibility towards public and regulatory policy
a) |Is your Company a member of any trade and chamber or | No
association?
b) |Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations | Not applicable

for the advancement or improvement of public good?
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Principle 8 - Supporting inclusive growth and development

a) |Does the Company have specified programmes/initiatives/ | Yes. The Company has framed a Corporate Social

projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 87 Responsibility policy (CSR policy). CSR projects /
programmes identified in line with the CSR policy are
undertaken by the Company. Please refer CSR Report for
further details.

b) |Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-|Yes. Please refer CSR Report.
house team/own foundation/external NGO/government
structures/any other organization?

¢) | Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative? | Impact assessment study is done for major initiatives of

the Company.

d) |What is your Company's direct contribution to community | Yes. Please refer CSR Report.
development projects- Amount in INR and the details of the
projects undertaken?

e) |Have you taken steps to ensure that this community | Initiatives are identified based on the requirement of the
development initiative is successfully adopted by the|community such that the benefits out of them are of an
community? enduring nature like supporting girl children education in

rural areas.
Principle 9 - Providing value to customers & consumers

a) | What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases | Nil
are pending as on the end of financial year?

b) |Does the Company display product information on the | Not applicable, since the Company is into investment
product label, over and above what is mandated as per | activity.
local laws?

c) |Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the | No
Company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the
last five years and pending as on end of financial year?

d) | Did your Company carry out any consumer survey/ No

consumer satisfaction trends?
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Cholamandalam Financial Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind
AS financial statements of Cholamandalam Financial
Holdings Limited (formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings
Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance
sheet as at March 31 2020, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to
the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit
including other comprehensive income, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs), as specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company
in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

We have determined that there are no key audit matters
to communicate in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
Board’s Report including Annexures to the Board’s Report
and Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate
Governance and General Shareholder Information and
Business Responsibility Report included in the Annual
Report, but does not include the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
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Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements,
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
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and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as
a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2” to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration
for the year ended March 31, 2020 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central in accordance with the provisions of Section
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;
Section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1” (h)  With respect to the other matters to be included
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
3 and 4 of the Order. Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to

that:
@

We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of
those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements comply with
the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended;

On the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on March

the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact
of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements — Refer Note 25 to the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Subramanian Suresh
Partner
Membership Number: 083673

31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified

Place : Chennai UDIN: 20083673AAAABE2283

Date :June 15, 2020
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ANNEXURE 1 REFERRED TO IN OUR REPORT OF
EVEN DATE

Re: Cholamandalam Financial

Holdings Limited

(formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)
(“the Company”)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

The Company does not have any Property, Plant
and Equipment and, accordingly, the requirements
under clause 3(i) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company’s business does not involve
inventories and, accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(jii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
guarantees, and securities given in respect of which
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act are
applicable and hence not commented upon. In
our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, provisions of Section 186
of the Act in respect of investments made have
been complied with by the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within
the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act 2013, and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(v) of the order are not
applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained,
the Company is not in the business of sale of any
goods. Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of
clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory

O Corporate Overview © Management Reports @ Financial Statements 0‘

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

dues including Income tax and Goods and
Service Tax (GST). The provisions relating to
provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
duty of customs, cess, wealth tax, duty of
excise, value added tax are not applicable to
the Company;

According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income-tax and goods and service
tax were outstanding, at the year end, for a
period of more than six months from the date
they became payabile;

According to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no dues of income tax
and goods and service tax that have not been
deposited on account of any disputes.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans
or borrowing to a financial institution, bank or
government or dues to debenture holders.

In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given by the management, the
Company has utilized the monies raised by the way
of Term Loans for the purposes for which they were
raised. The Company has not raised any money by
way of initial public offer / further public offer.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the
purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the
financial statements and according to the information
and explanations given by the management, we
report that no fraud by the company or no fraud on
the company by the officers and employees of the
Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

According to the information and explanations given
by the management, the managerial remuneration
has been paid / provided in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies
Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order
are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.
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(xiii) According to the information and explanations given
by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and
the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on an overall examination of the balance
sheet, the company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the year under
review and hence, reporting requirements under
clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the company and,
not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given
by the management, the Company has not entered

into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him / her.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given
to us, we report that the Company has registered as
required, under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Subramanian Suresh
Partner
Membership Number: 083673
Place : Chennai
Date :June 15, 2020

ANNEXURE-2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE IND
AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CHOLAMANDALAM
FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN
AS Tl FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

To the Members of Cholamandalam Financial Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited),

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of Cholamandalam Financial Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
as specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements was
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established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting With Reference to these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting with reference to these Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the Standalone Ind
AS Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting with reference to these Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material
respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Subramanian Suresh
Partner
Membership Number: 083673

Place : Chennai
Date :June 15,2020
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(Formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

Standalone Ind AS Balance Sheet

As at March 31, 2020

(All amounts are in crores of Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

p I As at As at
articulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Assets
Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 9.41 0.42
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 3 33.86 111.33
Investments 4 1,278.35 955.70
Other Financial Assets 5 0.02 -
1,321.64 1,067.45

Non-Financial Assets
Current tax assets (Net) 0.05 0.01
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 0.34 0.26
Intangible Assets 6 0.08 -
Other Non-Financial Assets 7 0.04 0.06
0.46 0.33
Total Assets 1,322.10 1,067.78

Equity and Liabilities

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 8 200.63 -
Other Payables

i) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -

ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 0.55 0.34
small enterprises
Other Financial Liabilities 9 1.91 2.25
203.09 2.59
Non Financial Liabilities
Provisions 10 0.01 -
Non Financial Liabilities 11 0.71 0.67
0.72 0.67
Equity
Equity Share Capital 12 18.77 18.77
Other Equity 13 1,099.52 1,045.75
Total Equity 1,118.29 1,064.52
Total Equity And Liabilities 1,322.10 1,067.78
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are forming part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn No.101049W/E300004

per Subramanian Suresh Sridharan Rangarajan M M Murugappan
Partner Director Chairman
Membership No: 083673

Place : Chennai E Krithika N Ganesh
Date : June 15, 2020 Company Secretary Manager & Chief Financial Officer
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Standalone Ind AS Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts are in crores of Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2020] March 31, 2019

Revenue from Operations

- Interest income 6.22 6.32

- Dividend income 76.59 58.09

- Net gain on fair value changes on financial instruments 0.01 1.16

- Service Income 8.06 7.93
Total Revenue from operations (I) 90.88 73.50
Other Income (Il) 15 0.02 0.02
Total Income (lll) = (I)+(ll) 90.90 73.52
Expenses
Finance cost 16 1.48 -
Employee Benefits Expense 17 1.03 0.91
Depreciation and amortisation expense 6 0.01 -
Other Expenses 18 1.45 1.70
Total Expense (IV) 3.97 2.61
Profit Before Tax (V) = (lll) - (IV) 86.93 70.91
Income Tax

- Current Tax 26 3.60 4.38
Net tax expense (VI) 3.60 4.38
Profit for the year (VII) = (V) - (VI) 83.33 66.53

Other Comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
Net (loss)/gain in Fair value on Equity Instruments at

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) iz 0.77)
Income tax effect of above items 0.08 0.09
Other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax (VIII) (0.61) (0.68)
Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (VI + VIII) 82.72 65.85
Earnings per Equity Share of ¥1 each

Basic 4.44 3.55
Diluted 4.44 3.55
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2

The accompanying notes are forming part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Regn No.101049W/E300004

per Subramanian Suresh Sridharan Rangarajan M M Murugappan
Partner Director Chairman
Membership No: 083673

Place : Chennai E Krithika N Ganesh
Date :June 15, 2020 Company Secretary Manager & Chief Financial Officer




Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited

(Formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)
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Standalone Ind AS Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended March 31, 2020

(All amounts are in crores of Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Tax 86.93 70.91

Adjustments for:

Finance Costs 1.48 -
Net gain on fair value changes orll financial instruments at Fair 0.01) (1.16)
Value Through Statement of Profit and Loss ('"FVTPL")
Depreciation and amortisation expense 0.01 -
Interest income on Deposits (6.22) (6.32)
(4.74) (7.48)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 82.19 63.43
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/Decrease in operating Assets
- Financial Assets (0.02) 0.04
- Non Financial Assets 0.02 0.01
o VP 0 410
- Investment in Subsidiaries (324.26) (39.82)
- Investment in Financial Instruments at FVTPL (0.35) (68.66)
- Proceeds from Sale of Financial Instruments at FVTPL 1.29 (247.10) 94.19 (98.40)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
- Financial Liabilities 0.01 0.05
- Trade Payables 0.21 (0.02)
- Non Financial Liabilities 0.04 0.20
- Provisions 0.01 0.27 - 0.23
Cash Flow generated / (used) in Operations (164.64) (34.74)
Interest Received on Bank Deposits 7.48 5.22
Income taxes paid (3.66) 3.82 (4.37) 0.85

Net Cash generated / (used) in Operating Activities (A) (160.82) (33.89)




Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

Standalone Ind AS Cash Flow Statement

As at March 31, 2020

(All amounts are in crores of Indian rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of intangible asset (0.04) -
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B) (0.04) -
Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Borrowings other than debt securities at amortised cost 199.15 -
Proceeds from issue of Share Capital (Including Securities

. - . 0.47 5.20
Premium and Share application money received)
Dividc.an.ds Paid (I.ncludirlmg Distribution Tax and Unpaid dividends (29.77) (25.96)
pertaining to earlier periods)
Net Cash from / (used) in Financing Activities (C) 169.85 (20.76)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8.99 (54.65)
(A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Year (Refer 0.42 5507
Note 3)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year (Refer Note 3) 9.41 0.42

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Note 2

The accompanying notes are forming part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Regn No.101049W/E300004

per Subramanian Suresh Sridharan Rangarajan M M Murugappan
Partner Director Chairman
Membership No: 083673

Place : Chennai E Krithika N Ganesh
Date : June 15, 2020 Company Secretary Manager & Chief Financial Officer
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Notes to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

1.

1.1

Background and Corporate Information

Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited
(“the Company”, formerly known as Tl Financial
Holdings Limited) (CIN: L65100TN1949PLC002905)
is a Public Limited Company domiciled in India. The
Company is listed on BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Registered
Office of the Company is located at Dare House,
No.234, NSC Bose Road, Chennai-600 001,
Tamil Nadu.

Pursuant to a scheme of arrangement (“the
Scheme”) the manufacturing business undertaking
of the Company was vested in/ transferred to
Tube Investments of India Limited (“the Resulting
Company”) vide the order of the National Company
Law Tribunal, Chennai (“NCLT”) dated July 17,
2017. The Scheme had an appointed date of April
1, 2016 and came into effect from August 1, 2017.
The Company received certificate of registration
dated January 06, 2020 as a non-deposit taking
Systemically Important Core Investment Company
(CIC-ND-SI), from the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”)
to carry on the business as a Non-Banking Financial
Institution.

The Company undertakes financial services
business through its Subsidiaries - Cholamandalam
MS General Insurance Company Limited for
general insurance business and Cholamandalam
Investment and Finance Company Limited for
lending operations. Risk advisory services is carried
out through a joint venture entity Cholamandalam

MS Risk Services Limited.

The standalone financial statements are presented
in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency
of the Company and all values are rounded to the
nearest crore, except when otherwise indicated.

The standalone financial statements were authorised
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on June 15, 2020.

Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Indian

1.2

1.3

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (as amended from time to time).

The standalone financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI) instruments and certain financial assets
and financial liabilities measured at fair value (refer
accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The regulatory disclosures as required by Master
Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 to be included as a part of
the Notes to Accounts are prepared based on Ind
AS financial statements in line with RBI notification
dated March 13, 2020. Refer Note 31 for the
disclosures.

Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order
of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery or
settlement within 12 months after the reporting
date (current) and more than 12 months after the
reporting date (non-current) is presented in note 20
to the financial statements.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally
reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only
offset and reported net when, in addition to having
an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts without being contingent
on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on
a net basis in all the following circumstances:

e  The normal course of business

e  The event of default

e  The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company and/or its counterparties

Standards issued and effective for the year
ended March 31, 2020

The Company applied Ind AS 116 Leases for the
first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a
result of adoption of this new accounting standard
is described below.

Ind AS 116 superseded Ind AS 17 Leases including
its appendices (Appendix C of Ind AS 17 For




Cholamandalam Financial Holdings Limited
(Formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

Notes to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

determining whether an arrangement contains a
Lease, Appendix A of Ind AS 17 Operating Leases-
Incentives and Appendix B of Ind AS 17 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions involving the Legal
Form of a Lease) were considered. This new
standard sets out the principles for recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise most leases on
the Balance Sheet.

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially
unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore,
Ind AS 116 does not have an impact for leases
where the Company is the lessor.

The Company adopted Ind AS 116, with the date of

e How an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances

The Company determines whether to consider each
uncertain tax treatment separately or together with
one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses
the approach that better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty.

The Company applies significant judgement in
identifying uncertainties over income tax treatments.
Upon adoption of Appendix C to Ind AS 12, the
Company considered whether it has uncertain tax
positions. The Company is of the view that it is
probable that its tax treatments will be accepted by
the taxation authorities. Matters addressed in the
Appendix did not have an impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

initial application being April 1, 2019. The Company 1.4 COVID-19 Impact
elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in a
contracts that, at the commencement date, have a - . . .
. significant decrease in economic activity across
lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a .
: the country. The Government of India and the
purchase option (short term leases). The Company . .
h ; lied th t' ted for | f respective State Governments announced a strict
| as nol app |et © exemption granted for lease o lockdown to contain the spread of the virus which
ow-value assets. was further extended twice across the nation with
The adoption of new lease standard, Ind AS 116, did some relaxations in specific areas. This has had a
not have impact in the financial statements of the consequential impact on the regular operations of
Company. the company’s material subsidiary companies. Our
Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income asse§sm§nt ba'sed o.n estlmgtes and jud.gm'ents
considering available information does not indicate
Tax Treatment S i
any material impact on the carrying value of assets
The appendix addresses the accounting for income and liabilities as on the reporting date. However,
taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that considering the inherent uncertainty regarding the
affects the application of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes. severity and duration of the pandemic, the actual
It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the impact could be different from these estimates.
scope of Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include Further, the impact assessment as on date with
requirements relating to interest and penalties the available information does not indicate any
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The adverse impact on the ability of the Company or its
Appendix specifically addresses the following: subsidiaries to continue as a going concern.
e  Whether an entity considers uncertain tax 2. Significant accounting policies
treatments separately . Lo . .
2.1 Financial instruments - initial recognition

e The assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation
authorities

° How an entity determines taxable profit ( tax
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates

2.1.1 Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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Notes to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

2.1.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments

The classification of financial instruments at initial
recognition depends on their contractual terms and
the business model for managing the instruments.
Financial instruments are initially measured at their
fair value, except in the case of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at Fair Value Through
Profit & Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs are added
to, or subtracted from, this amount.

2.1.3 Measurement categories of financial assets and
liabilities
The Company classifies all of its financial assets
based on the business model for managing the

assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured
at either:

e  Amortised cost,
e FVTPL,
e FVTOCI
2.2 Financial assets and liabilities

2.2.1 Bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables and
financial investments at amortised cost

The Company measures Bank balances, Loans and
other financial investments at amortised cost if both
of the following conditions are met:

e  The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

The details of these conditions are outlined below.
2.2.2 Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the
level that best reflects how it manages Company’s
financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on
an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher

level of aggregated portfolios and is based on
observable factors such as:

() How the performance of the business model
and the financial assets held within that
business model are evaluated and reported to
the entity's key management personnel

(i) The risks that affect the performance of the
business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and, in particular,
the way those risks are managed

(i) How managers of the business are
compensated (for example, whether the
compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or on the contractual cash
flows collected)

(iv) The expected frequency, value and timing
of sales are also important aspects of the
Company’s assessment

The business model assessment is based on
reasonably expected scenarios without taking
'worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account.
If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in
a way that is different from the Company's original
expectations, the Company does not change the
classification of the remaining financial assets
held in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or
newly purchased financial assets going forward.

2.2.3 The SPPI Test

As a second step of its classification process
the Company assesses the contractual terms of
financial assets to identify whether they meet the
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the
fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition
and may change over the life of the financial asset
(for example, if there are repayments of principal or
amortisation of the premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interest within a
lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To
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(Formerly known as Tl Financial Holdings Limited)

Notes to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

2.3

2.4

2.5

make the SPPI assessment, the Company applies
judgement and considers relevant factors such
as the currency in which the financial asset is
denominated, and the period for which the interest
rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more
than de minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic
lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases,
the financial asset is required to be measured at
FVTPL.

Equity instruments (other than investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates as
referred to in Note 2.12) at Fair Value Through
Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

The Company subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss,
unless the Company’s management has elected to
classify irrevocably some of its equity investments
as equity instruments at FVTOCI, when such
instruments meet the definition of Equity under
Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
are not held for trading but are held for strategic
purpose. Such classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these equity instruments
are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised in profit or loss as dividend income
when the right of the payment has been established,
except when the Company benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded
in OCI. Equity instruments at FVTOCI are not subject
to an impairment assessment.

Borrowed funds (other than Debt securities)

After initial measurement, borrowed funds are
subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking the costs that
are an integral part of the EIR.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

2.5.1 Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial asset have expired.
The Company also derecognises the financial asset
if it has both transferred the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for derecognition.

2.5.2 Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference between
the carrying value of the original financial liability
and the consideration paid is recognised in the
statement of profit & loss.

2.6 Recognition of Income

A. Revenue (other than interest income and
dividend income covered by Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments) is measured at fair value
of the consideration received or receivable.
Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with
customers outlines a single comprehensive
model of accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers.

B. The Company recognises revenue from
contracts with customers based on a five-step
model as set out in Ind AS 115:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A
contract is defined as an agreement between
two or more parties that creates enforceable
rights and obligations and sets out the criteria
for every contract that must be met.

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the
contract: A performance obligation is a promise
in a contract with a customer to transfer a good
or service to the customer.
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Notes to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Step 3: Determine the transaction price: The 2.7 Taxes

transaction price is the amount of consideration 2.7.1 Current tax

to which the Company expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring promised goods
or services to a customer, excluding amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract: For a
contract that has more than one performance
obligation, the Company allocates the
transaction price to each performance
obligation in an amount that depicts the amount
of consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each
performance obligation.

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
Company satisfies a performance obligation.

2.6.1 Brand fee

Brand fee income is recognised as and when the
services are rendered in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the relevant agreement.

Interest income and dividend income covered by
Ind AS 109.

2.6.2 Interest income

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (‘EIR’) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost.
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. The EIR (and therefore, the amortised cost
of the asset) is calcula